CONG TY CO PHAN CONG HOA XA HQI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
MASAN HIGH-TECH MATERIALS
SH: 82/2022/CV-MHT Doc lap — Tw do — Hanh phic
VIv: Giai trinh loi nhugn sau thué theo béo FAEEERF SRS
cdo tai chinh dwoe kiém todn ndm 2021

chénh léch so voi nam trudc

Ngay 18 thang 3 nam 2022

Kinh giri: Uy ban Ching khodn Nha nwéc
S& Giao dich Chirng khodn Ha Néi

Coéng ty C6 phin Masan High-Tech Materials xin gui t6i Quy Co quan 1&i chéo tran
trong.

Theo quy dinh tai diém a. khoan 4, Diéu 14 Théng tu sé 96/2020/TT-BTC ngay
16/11/2020 ctia B9 Tai chinh huéng dan cong bd théng tin trén thi truong chimg khoan (“Thong
t 96™), Céng ty Cb phin Masan High-Tech Materials (sau dy goi la “Céng ty” hay “MHT”)
xin gii trinh vé chénh léch lgi nhudn sau thué theo béo céo tai chinh da duoc kiém toan nam
2021 thay ddi trén 10% so véi bao cdo tai chinh da dwoc kiém toan ndm trude, nhu sau:

1. Trén bao cdo hop nhit ciia Céng ty va cac cong ty con (goi chung 1a “Tap doan™):
Loi nhun sau thué nam 2021 cia Tap doan 1a 261 ty VND, tang 209 ty VND so vai
lgi nhuan sau thué 52 ty VND nam 2020 véi céc 1y do chinh sau:
- Logi nhuén gép nam 2021 tang 2.092 ty VND so véi nam 2020 do:
e Nhu ciu vé vonfram ting manh va gi4 vonfram trén thi truong ting manh trong nam
2021 va duy tri & mire cao 6n dinh tir thang 10/2021 dén cudi nam 2021, cao hon
39% so véi gid tai thoi diém cudi nim 2020:

e Gi4 florit ting nhe do anh hudng cia viée gidn doan chudi cung g toan céu;

e Gia bitmuth van tiép tyc ting trong nam 2021 va cao hon 38% so véi gia cudi nam
2020,

- Tuy nhién, déng gép ciia mirc tang tir loi nhudn gdp da bi giam trir mot phén boi:

e Chi phi ban hang va chi phi quan ly doanh nghiép tang twong tmg vai sy tang truong
vugt bac cua doanh thu va lgi nhuén gbp vai mice tang 575 tv VND so véi nam
trudc.

e Tong thu nhip khac thuan giam 1.213 ty VND do trong nam 2020, Tap doan ghi
nhin 1.298 tv VND vao thu nhép khac lién quan dén viéc ghi nhén loi thé thuong
mai 4m phat sinh tir viéc hop nhat kinh doanh vai H.C.Stark;



2. Trén béo céo riéng da dugc kiém toan cia Cong ty:

Két qua hoat déng kinh doanh riéng 1é nam 2021 ghi nhén loi nhuan sau thué 12 0,5 ty
VND, giam so vai két qua hoat dong kinh doanh nam 2020 véi lgi nhuan sau thué 1 7.9 ty
VND chu yéu do thu nhap thuan tir hoat dong tai chinh giam.

Cong ty Cb phin Masan High-Tech Materials xin gii trinh dé Quy Co quan rd.

Xin tran trong cam on.
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Cong ty C6 phian Masan High-Tech Materials

Bdo cdo tai chinh riéng cho nam két thic
ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2021
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Cong ty C6 phan Masan High-Tech Materials
Théng tin vé Céng ty

Gidy Chimg nhin
Diing ky Doanh nghiép s6 0309966889 ngay 27 thing 4 nim 2010

Gidy Chimg nhan Pang ky Doanh nghiép ciia Céng ty da duge diéu chinh nhidu I3n, va Ian didu
chinh gan day nhét 1a vao ngay 11 thing 2 nam 2022. Gidy Chimg nhan Dang ky Doanh nghiép va
cdc ban diéu chinh do S& Ké hoach vi Déu tr Thanh phd Ho Chi Minh cAp. Gidy Chimg nhan Ding
ky Kinh doanh dau tién s6 0309966889 duge cap ngay 27 thang 4 nam 2010.

Gidy Ching nhan Piu twsé 41122000131 ngily 2 thing 8 nam 2013

Gidy Chimg nhén Dau tu do Uy ban Nhén dan Thanh phé H3 Chf Minh cap cho Cong ty dé thue hién
viéc dau tr du dn “Cong ty Co ph%n Tai nguyén Ma San” ¢6 th&i gian hoat dong 1a 10 nam ké tir
ngay dugc cap Giay Chimg nhin Dau tu,

Héi déng Quin tri Ong Danny Le Chui tich
Ong Nguyén Thidu Nam Phé Chi tich thir nhit
Ong Craig Richard Bradshaw Thanh vién
f}ng Akira Osada Thanh vién (rr ngay 12/4/2021)
Ba Nguyén Thu Hién Thanh vién doc lap
(tie ngay 12/4/202])
Ong Nguyén Van Thing Thanh vién (dén ngay 12/4/2021)
Ban Giam déc Ong Craig Richard Bradshaw Téng Gidm déc
Ong Hady Seyeda Phé Téng Gidm déc
(tir ngay 12/4/202])
Ong Stuart James Wells Giam déc Tai chinh
Tru sé ding ky Phong 802, Ting 8, Toa nha Central Plaza
S0 17 Lé Duan, Phudng Bén Nghé, Quan 1
Thanh phé Hé Chi Minh
Viét Nam
Céng ty kiém toan Céng ty TNHH KPMG

Viét Nam
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Céng ty Co phan Masan High-Tech Materials
B4o cdo ciia Ban Gidm déc

Ban Gidm déc Cong ty C6 phan Masan High-Tech Materials (“Cong ty”) trinh bay bdo cdo nay va
béo cdo tai chinh riéng dinh kém cua Cong ty cho ndm két thic ngay 31 thdang 12 nam 2021.

Ban Giam déc Cong ty chiu trdch nhiém lap va trinh bay béo cdo tai chinh riéng theo cdc Chuan muc
Ké todn Viét Nam, Ché do Ké todn Doanh nghi¢p Viét Nam va cic quy dinh phdp Iy c6 lién quan
dén viéc ldp va trinh bay béo cdo tai chinh. Theo ¥ kién ciia Ban Gidm déc Cong ty:

(a)  bdo cdo tai chinh riéng dugc trinh bay tir trang 5 dén trang 22 da phan dnh trung thyc va hgp
1y tinh hinh tai chinh truée hgp nhét cua Cong ty ta: ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2021, két qua hoat
dong kinh doanh trudce hop nhét va luu chuyen tién té trude hop nhét cua Cong ty cho nam
két thic cting ngay, phit hgp véi cdc Chun muc Ké todn Viét Nam, Ché d¢ Ké todn Doanh
nghi¢p Viét Nam va cic quy dinh phép 1y ¢6 lién quan dén viéc lap va trinh bay bdo cdo tai
chinh; va

(b)  tai ngay lap bdo cdo nay, khong c6 ly do gi dé cho rang Cong ty s& khong thé thanh tosn cdc
khoan n¢ phai tra khi dén han.

Tai ngay 1ap bdo céo nay, Ban Gidm déc Cong ty da phé duyét phat hanh bdo cdo tai chinh rieng dinh
kém.

Forg Gidm déc

Thanh phé Hé Chi Minh, ngay 11 théng 3 nam 2022
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KPMG Limited

46" Floor, Keangnam Landmark 72
E6 Pham Hung Road, Me Tri Ward
South Tu Liem District, Hanoi, Vietnam
+84 (24) 3946 1600 | kpmg.com.vn

BAO CAO KIEM TOAN DOC LAP

Kinh gtvi céc Cé dong
Coéng ty Cé phan Masan High-Tech Materials

Chung t6i da kiém toan béo céo tai chinh riéng dinh kém cia Céng ty C6 phan
Masan High-Tech Materials (“Céng ty"), bao gém bang can déi ké toan riéng tai
ngay 31 ths’mg 12 n&m 2021, bao céo két qua hoat déng kinh doanh riéng va bao
cao Iwu chuyeén tién té riéng lién quan cho nam két thic cling ngay va cac thuyét
minh kém theo dwoc Ban Giam dc Céng ty phé duyét phat hanh ngay 11 thang 3
nam 2022, dwoc trinh bay tir trang 5 dén trang 22.

Trach nhiém ctia Ban Giam déc

Ban Giam db6c Céng ty chiu trach nhiém |ap va trinh bay trung thuc va hop ly bao
cdo tai chinh riéng nay theo cdc Chudn muc Ké toan Viét Nam, Ché dé Ké toan
Doanh nghiép Viét Nam va céc quy dinh phap ly c6 lién quan dén viéc lap va trinh
bay bao cdo tai chinh, va chju trach nhiém déi véi hé théng kiém soat néi bé ma
Ban Giam déc xac dinh |a can thiét & dam bao viéc lap bao cao tai chinh riéng
khéng cé sai sét trong yéu do gian 1an hay nham Ian.

Trach nhiém cta kiém toan vién

Trach nhiém cua ching téi 1a duwa ra y kién vé béo cdo tai chinh riéng nay dua trén
két qua kiém toan cta chung téi. Chiing t6i da thuc hién cong viéc kiém toan theo
cdc Chuan muwe Kiém toan Viét Nam. Céc chudn muc nay yéu cau ching téi tuan
tht chuén myc va cac quy dinh vé dao dlrc nghé nghiép va lap ké hoach va thuc
hién cudc kiém toan @& dat dugc sy d&m bao hop ly vé viéc liéu bao céo tai chinh
riéng c6 con sai sét trong yéu hay khéng.

Cong viéc kiém toan bao gbm viéc thue hién céac thil tuc nhdm thu thap céc bang
chirng kiém toan vé cac sb liéu va cac thuyét minh trong béo céo tai chinh. Cac thi
tuc duoc lwa chon dwa trén xét doan cua kiém toan vién, bao gc’}m danh gia rdi ro
c6 sai sot trong yéu trong bédo céo tai chinh do gian lan hodc nham 1an. Khi thuc
hién cac danh gia rli ro nay, kiém toan vién xem xét kiém soat ndi bo clia Cong ty
lién quan t&i viéc 1ap va trinh bay béao céo tai chinh trung thire va hop ly nham thiét
ké céc thi tuc kiém toan phi hop vai tinh hinh thire té, tuy nhién khéng nham muc
dichduaray kié_n vé hiéu qua clia kiém soat ndi bd clia Céng ty. Coéng viéc kiém
toan cling bao gom viéc déanh gia tinh thich hop cla cac chinh sach ké toan duoc
ap dung va tinh hgp ly cla cac wéc tinh ké toan cla Ban Giam déc Cong ty, ciing
nhu danh gia viéc trinh bay téng thé bao céo tai chinh.

Chung t6i tin réng céc bang chirng kiém toan ma chiing t6i thu dwoc la day da va
thich hop lam co s& cho y kién kiém toan clia chiing toi.

KPMG Limited, n Vieinamase one membar limited labiity company and & membar firm of the 3
KPMG global organization of indepandant member firms afiliated with KPMG Intemational
Limited, a private English company limifted by guarantes. Al rights resarved
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Y kién ciia kiém toan vién

Theo y kién clia ching t6i, bao céo tai chinh riéng da phan anh trung thuc va hop Iy, trén
céc khia canh trong yéu, tinh hinh tai chinh trwéc hgp nhét clia Céng ty Cé phan Masan
High-Tech Materials tai ngay 31 thang 12 n&m 2021, két qua hoat dong kinh doanh truéc
hop nhét va Iwu chuyén tién té trwdc hop nhét clia Cong ty cho nam ket thiic ciing ngay,
phl hgp v&i cac Chuan muc Ké toan Viét Nam, Ché do Ké todn Doanh nghiép Viét Nam
va cac quy dinh phap Iy cé lién quan dén viéc Iap va trinh bay bao cao tai chinh.

Céng ty TNHH KPMG
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Tran Anh Quéan Phan My Linh
Giay chirng nhan dang ky hanh nghé Giy chirng nhan dang ky hanh nghé
kieém toan s6: 0306-2018-007-1 kiém toan sé: 3064-2019-007-1

Phé Téng Gidm déc
Ha N&i, ngay 11 thang 3 ndm 2022
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Céong ty Co phan Masan High-Tech Materials
Bang cin doi ké toan riéng tai ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2021

TAI SAN

Tai san ngin han (100 = 110 + 130 + 150)

Tién‘ va cdc khoan twong dwong tién
Tién
Cic khoan tuong duong tién

Cic khoin phai thu ngiin han

Tra trude cho nguoi bin ngan han
Phai thu ngén han khac

Tai sdn ngéin han khéc
Thué gia tri gia tang dugc khau trir

Tai san dai han (200 = 210 + 220 + 240 + 250)

Ciac khodn phai thu dai han
Phai thu dai han khéc
Tai san ¢d dinh
Tai san ¢6 dinh v6 hinh
Nguyén gid
Gid tri hao mon liry ké

Tai sin dé dang dai han
Chi phi xdy dung co ban do dang

Diu tu tai chinh dai han
Pau tir vio cong ty con

TONG TAI SAN (270 = 100 + 200)

Mi Thuyét

£
S0

100

110
111
112

130
132
136

150
152

200

210
216

220
227

228
229

240
242

250
251

270

minh

31/12/2021
Nghin VND

84.602.412

5.600.363
600.363
5.000.000

78.800.192
92.800
78.707.392

201.857
201.857

15.181.439.646

3.000.000.000
3.000.000.000

137.950
(137.950)

24.963.257
24.963.257

12.156.476.389
12.156.476.389

_ Mau B 01-DN
(Ban hanh theo Thong tw so 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua B¢ Tai chinh)

1/1/2021
Nghin VND

1.102.056.861

51.739.750
739.750
51.000.000

1.050.317.111

1.050.317.111

14.156.476.389

2.000.000.000
2.000.000.000

137.950
(137.950)

12.156.476.389
12.156.476.389

15.266.042.058

15.258.533.250

Cdc thuyét minh dinh kém la bo phdn hop thanh cua bdo cdo tai chinh riéng nay
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Céng ty Cbé phin Masan High-Tech Materials
Bing cin d6i ké todn riéng tai ngay 31 thang 12 nim 2021 (tiép theo)
Miu B 01 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Théng twr s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua Bo Tai chinh)

Ma Thuyét  31/12/2021 1/1/2021
s0  minh Nghin VND Nghin VND
NGUON VON
NOQ PHAI TRA (300 = 310 + 330) 300 3.108.407.105  3.101.408.455
No ngin han - 310 108.407.105 1.101.408.455
Phai tra ngudi ban ngén han 311 3.217.708 32
Thué va cdc khoan phai ndp Nha nure 313 197.528 406.630
Chi phf phai tra ngén han 315 8 48.356.333 88.151.323
Phai tra ngén han khic _ 319 9 35.435.536 12.850.470
Vay va trdi phiéu phat hanh ngan han 320 10(a) 21.200.000 1.000.000.000
N dai han 330 3.000.000.000  2.000.000.000
Trii phiéu phat hanh dai han 338 10(b)  3.000.000.000  2.000.000.000
VON CHU SO HU'U (400 = 410) 400 12.157.634.953  12.157.124.795
Vén chii sé hiru 410 11 12.157.634.953  12.157.124.795
Vén cé phan o ‘ 411 12 10.991.554.200  10.991.554.200
- Co phieu pho thong co quyen biéu quyét 41la 10.991.554.200  10.991.554.200
Thang du vén c6 phan 412 12 1.098.259.892 1.098.259.892
Loi nhudn sau thué chua phén phéi 421 67.820.861 67.310.703
- LNST chwa phan phoi dén cudi nam trude 42la 67.310.703 59.385.554
- LNST ndm nay 421b 510.158 7.925.149
TONG NGUON VON 440 15.266.042.058  15.258.533.250

(440 = 300 + 400)

Ngay 11 thiang 3 nam 2022

Ngudi lap:

Nguyép Thi Thanh Mai
Ké todn truong

Neudi kiém tra:

g Richard Bradshaw

Tong Gidm doc

Cdc thuyét minh dinh kém la bg phdn hop thanh cua bdo cdo tai chinh riéng nay
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Céng ty Co phan Masan High-Tech Materials
Bio cdo két qua hoat dong kinh doanh riéng cho nim két thic ngay 31 thang 12 nim 2021
Miu B 02 - DN

(Ban hénh theo Théng tw s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua B Tai chinh)

Mid Thuyét 2021 2020

s6 minh  Nghin VND Nghin VND
Doanh thu hoat dong tai chinh 21 13 280.995.953 306.449.356
Chi phi tai chinh 22 14 272.008.141 299.550.094
Chi phi quan ly doanh nghiép 26 8.148.738 5.428.920
Loi nhudn thuin tir hoat déng kinh doanh
(30 = 21 - 22 - 26) 30 839.074 1.470.342
Thu nhap khic 31 - 501.547
Két qua tir cic hoat djng khic
(40 = 31) - 501.547
Loi nhuin ké todn truéc thué
(50 = 30 + 40) 50 839.074 1.971.889
Chi phi thué TNDN hién hanh 51 15 328.916 (5.953.260)
Loi nhuin sau thué TNDN
(60 =50 - 51) 60 510.158 7.925.149

Ngay 11 thdng 3 ndm 2022
Ngudi lap: Ngudi kiém tra:

Aty

Nguyén Thj Thanh Mai
Ké todn trirong

iam doc Tai chinh Tong Gidm doc

Cédc thuyet minh dinh kém la bo phdn hop thanh cua bdo cdo tai chinh riéng nay
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Céng ty Co phan Masan High-Tech Materials
Bio cdo lvu chuyén tién t¢ riéng cho nim két thic ngay 31 théng 12 nim 2021
(Phwong phap gian tiep)
Miu B 03 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Théng tw 56 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua B¢ Tai chinh)

Mia Thuyét 2021 2020
s6  minh  Nghin VND Nghin VND

LUU CHUYEN TIEN TU HOAT PONG KINH DOANH

Loi nhuin truée thué 01 839.074 1.971.889
Piéu chinh cho cic khoin
Lai tir hoat déng dau tu 05 (280.995.953)  (306.449.356)
Chi phi Iai vay va chi phi di vay 06 272.008.141 298.399 658

L tir hoat dgng kinh doanh truéc

nhiing thay @81 vén lura g 08 (8.148.738) (6.077.809)
Bién dong cdc khoan phai thu va tai san khic 09 (23.690.110) (292.885)
Bien dong cdc khoan phai tra va ng phai tra khac 11 507.671 (413.263)

(31.331.177) (6.783.957)
Tién'iﬁi vay da tra 14 (269.138.899) (301.932.976)
Thué thu nhap doanh nghiép da nop 15 (245.627) (300.000)

L_u'u chuyén tién thuan tir hoat dong 20 (300.715.703) (309.016.933)

kinh doanh

LUU CHUYEN TIEN TU HOAT PONG PAU TU

Gép von vao cong ty con _ 25 - (2.701.705.929)
Tién thu lai tién giri, dau tu vi ¢b tirc 27 276.001.125 963.858.457
Luu chuyén tién thuén tir hoat dong dau tu 30 276.001.125  (1.737.847.472)

Cdc thuyet minh dinh kem la b phdn hop thanh cua bdo cdo tai chinh riéng nay
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Céng ty Cb phan Masan High-Tech Materials
Béo cdo luu chuyén tién té riéng cho nam két thiic ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2021
(Phwong phép gidn tiép — tiép theo)
Maiu B 03 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Théng tu sé 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua Bé Tai chinh)

Mid Thuyét 2021 2020
s6  minh  Nghin VND Nghin VND

LUU CHUYEN TIEN TU HOAT PONG TAI CHINH
Tién thu tir phdt hanh ¢d phiéu v chi phi phét

hanh lién quan ' 31 (42.624.809)  2.094.330.737
Tién thu tir i vay v phét hanh tréi phiéu 33 1.039.200.000 .
Tién tra no gbc vay 34 (1.018.000.000) -

Laru chuyén tién thuén tir hoat dgng tai chinh 40 (21.424.809)  2.094.330.737

Luu chuyén tién thuén trong nam

(50 = 20 + 30 + 40) 50 (46.139.387) 47.466.332

Tién va cic khoan twong dwong tién ddu nim 60 51.739.750 4.273.418

Tién va céc khoan twong duong tién cudi nim

(70 = 50 + 60) 70 4 5.600.363 51.739.750

Ngay 11 thiang 3 nam 2022

Nguoi lap: Ngudi kiém tra:

Nguyén Thj Thanh Mai
Ké todn trieong

Cdc thuyét minh dinh kém la bg phdan hop thanh cua bdo cdo tai chinh riéng nay
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Cong ty Co phan Masan High-Tech Materials
Thuyét minh béo cdo tai chinh riéng cho nam két thic ngay 31 thang 12 nim 2021

~ MauB 09 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Théng ne s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua B Tai chinh))

Cic thuyét minh nay 1a bé phan hop thanh va can duge doc dong thoi véi bdo cdo tai chinh riéng
dinh kém.

Pon vi bao cdo

Hinh thire sé hiru von va clu triic Cong ty

Cong ty Co phan Masan High-Tech Materials (“Céng ty” hodc “MHT") la mdt cong ty c¢d phén dwoc
thanh lap tai Viét Nam. Hoat dong chinh cua Cong ty la tu van quan ly.

Tai ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2021, Cong ty ¢6 2 nhén vién (1/1/2021: 2 nhén vién).

Co sé lap bao cao tai chinh

Tuyén bo vé tuin tha
Béo cdo tai chinh riéng duoc 1p theo cdc Chuén muc K& todn Viét Nam, Ché do Ké todn Doanh
nghi¢p Viét Nam va cdc quy dinh phdp 1y cé lién quan dén viéc ldp va trinh bay bdo cdo tai chinh.

Céng ty ciing lap va phét hanh riéng ré béo cdo tai chinh hgp nhét. Pé ¢6 thong tin day du vé tinh
hinh tai chinh hop nhat, két qua hoat dong kinh doanh hep nhét va luu chuyén tién té hop nhét cua
Céng ty va céc cong ty con (goi chung 12 “Tap doan™), bdo cdo tai chinh riéng nay can dugce doc ciing
véi bao cdo tai chinh hop nhat cua Tép doan.

Co s do lwong

Bdo cdo tai chinh riéng, trir bdo cdo luu chuyén tién té riéng, duoc lap trén co so don tich theo nguyén
tac gid goc. Bdo cdo luu chuyén tién té riéng dugc lap theo phuong phép gin tiép.

Ky ké todn nim

Ky ké todn nam ctia Céng ty 12 tir ngy 1 thdng 1 dén ngay 31 thdng 12.

Pon vi tién té ké todn
Don vi tién té ké todn ctia Cong ty 1a Dong Viét Nam (“VND™), ciing 1a don vi tién té dugc sir dung

cho muc dich 1ap va trinh bay bdo cdo tai chinh. Toan bd cdc sd liéu dugc 1am tron dén hang nghin
(Nghin VND), trir khi dugce trinh bay khac.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Cong ty Co phan Masan High-Tech Materials
Thuyét minh béo cdo tai chinh riéng cho nam két thic ngay 31 thiang 12 nam 2021
(tiép theo)
Miu B 09 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Théng tw 56 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua B Tai chinh)

Tém tit nhirng chinh sach ké toan chi yéu

Sau déy la nhimng chinh sich ké todn chu yéu duge Cong ty 4p dung trong viéc 1ap bdo cdo tai chinh
riéng nay.

Cic giao dich bing ngoai té

Ciéc giao dich bing cdc don vj tién khdc VND trong nim dugc quy dbi sang VND theo ty gid xap xi
voi ty gid thuc té tai ngay giao dich.

Cdc khoan muc tai san va ng phai tra cé gbc bang don vj tién & khic VND dugc quy déi sang VND
theo ty gid mua chuyén khoan doi véi tai san va ban chuyén khoan doi véi no phai tra, cia ngin hang
thuong mai noi Céng ty thuong xuyén cé giao dich tai ngay ket thic ky ke todn nam.

Tt ca cdc khoan chénh léch ty gid hdi dodi dugce ghi nhan vao béo cdo két qua hoat dong kinh doanh
riéng.

Tién va cic khoan twong dwong tién

Tién bao gom tién mat va tién giri ngan hing khong ky han. Céc khoan tuong duong tién la céc khoan
dau tu ngan han c6 tinh thanh khoan cao, ¢6 thé dé dang chuyén déi thanh mét luong tién xdc dinh,
khong co nhiéu rii ro vé thay doi gid tri va duge sir dung cho muc dich ddp (g cic cam két chi tién
ngan han hon la cho muc dich déau tur hay la cdc muc dich khic.

Piu tw vio cong ty con

Cic khoan dau tu vao cong ty con duge ghi nhan ban dau theo gid gbc bao gém gid mua vi cic chi
phi mua c6 lién quan tryc tiép. Sau ghi nhan ban déu, cdc khoan dau tu nay duge xdc dinh theo gid
goc trur di du phong giam gid khoan déu tu. Dy phong giam gid dau tu dugc lap khi don vi nhan dau
tu phat sinh 16 din dén Céng ty c6 kha nang mét von, trir khi ¢6 bing chimg ring gid tri ctia khoan
diu tu khong bi suy giam. Du phong giam gid dau tu dugc hoan nhép khi don vj nhan déu tu sau d6
tao ra loi nhuan dé bi trir cho céc khoan 16 da duoc 1ap du phong trude kia. Khoan du phong chi
duoc hoin nhap trong pham vi sao cho gid tri ghi s6 ciia khoan déu tu khéng vuot qua gid tr ghi 6
cua chiing khi gia dinh khéng ¢6 khoan du phong nao da duoc ghi nhan.

Ciac khodn phai thu

Céc khoan phai thu khach hang va céc khoan phai thu khic duoc phan dnh theo gia goc trir di dy
phong phai thu khé doi.

Tai san ¢6 dinh v6 hinh

A - - . L
Phan mém mady vi tinh

Gid mua ctia phan mém mdy vi tinh moi ma phan mém nay Lhang phal la mot bd phin gin ket Vol
phan cirng dugc ghi nhin nhur tai san ¢6 dinh vo hinh. Phan mém mdy vi tinh dugc tinh khau hao
theo phuong phédp dudng thing trong vong tir ba (3) dén tdm (8) nam.
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Cong ty C6 phan Masan High-Tech Materials
Thuyét minh béo cdo tai chinh riéng cho nim két thic ngay 31 thiang 12 nim 2021
(tiép theo)
Miu B 09 — DN
(Ban héanh theo Théng e s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua Bé Tai chinh)

Chi phi xay dung co ban dé dang

Chi phi xay dung co ban dé dang phan dnh cdc khoan chi phi xdy dung hodc trién khai tai san ¢6 dinh
hitu hinh va tai san ¢b dinh v6 hinh chwa duge hoan thanh hodc chua Iap dat xong. Cong ty khéng
tinh khau hao cho xdy dung co ban dé dang trong qué trinh xiy dung va lap dat.

Cac khoan phai tra

Céc khoan phai tra nguoi bén va khoan phai tra khac dugc thé hién theo gid gdc.

Hop dong hop téc kinh doanh

Hop dong hop téic kinh doanh ("HPHTKD”) la hop dong ma trong dé cic bén tham gia ky két dong
y thye hign cdc hoat dong kinh doanh cu thé ma qua dé khéng yéu ciu phai thanh lap mot phap nhan.
Cong ty hach toidn méi HDHTKD duya theo ban chal clia hop dong va cac quyén va nghia vu ctia
Cong ty trong hop dong. Tru'rmg hop Cong ty g6p von dudi hinh thirc tai san tai chinh cho cdc bén
khdc va do d6 tiép nhan mét quyén hop déng — duge nhin tién hodc tai san tai chinh khéc tir cdc bén
khédc theo HDHTKD, Coéng ty sé ghi nhéan tai san tai chinh. Truong hgp cédc khoan phan chia lgi
nhuén tir cdc bén khdc ctia HDHTKD c6 ban chét 1a thu nhép tai chinh, céc khoan néy s€ dugc ghi
nhan la thu nhéap tai chinh dua trén ty 1€ lgi nhuén theu thoa thudn cua cdc bén tham gia. Cic khoan
phén chia con phu thude vao ke{ qua kinh doanh cudi ciing cia HDHTKD va dugc ghi nhan 1 thu
nhap khi két qua kinh doanh cudi ciing cia HDHTKD ¢6 thé xdc dinh dugc mét cch dang tin cay.

Trii phiéu phat hanh
Tai thoi diém ghi nhan ban dau, trdi phiéu thuong duge xdc dinh theo gia géc bao gém khoan tién

thu dugce tir viéc phat hanh trai phiéu trir di chi phi phat hanh. Cic khoan chiét khau, phu tréi va chi
phi phét hanh dwgc phan bd dan theo phuong phip dudng thang trong sudt k¥ han cua tri phleu

Vion chii sé hiru
Co phiéu phé thong

C6 phiéu pho thong duoc trinh bay Ja von chii s¢ hiru. Phén chénh léch tang do phét hanh ¢4 phiéu
cao hon ménh gid dugc ghi nhén vao thang du von ¢6 phan. Chi p]u lién quan tryc tiép dén viéc phat
hanh ¢6 phiéu phd thong dugc ghi nhan 1a khoan giam thang du vén co phin.

Thué

Thué thu nhap doanh nghiép tinh trén loi nhuan hodc 16 cta nim bao gom thué thu nhdp hi¢n hanh
vit thué thu nhap hodn lai. Thué thu nhap doanh nghiép duge ghi nhéan trong béo cdo két qua hoat
dong kinh doanh ngoai trir truong hop c6 céce khoan thué thu nhép lién quan dén céc khoan muc dwgce
ghi nhan thang vao von chii so hivu, thi khi dé cic khoan thué thu nhip ndy ciing dugc ghi nhin thing
va0 von chi so him.

Thué thu nhap hién hanh la khoan thué du kién phai ndp dua trén thu nhap chiu thué trong nam, su
dung céc mirc thué suat c6 hiéu lyuc tai ngay két thic ky ké todn nam, va cdc khoan diéu chinh thué
phéi nop lién quan dén nhirg nam trude.
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Cong ty Co phin Masan High-Tech Materials
Thuyet minh bdo cdo tai chinh riéng cho nam két thic ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2021
(t[ep theo)
Miu B 09 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Théng twe s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua B Tai chinh)

Thué thu nhép hoan lai dugc tinh theo p]mcmg phdp bang can ddi ké todn cho céc chénh 1éch tam thoi
gilia gid tri ghi s6 cho muc dich béo cdo tai chinh va gid tri sir dung cho muc dich tinh thué ctia céc
khoan muc tai san va no phai tra. Gid trj cua thue thu nhép hoan lai dugc ghi nhan dya trén cédch thirc
du kién thu hm hodic thanh todn gid trj ghi s6 ctia cdc khoan muc tai san va ng phai tra sir dung cic
mitrc thué suit c6 hiéu luc hodc co ban c6 hiéu lyuc tai ngay két thiic kv ké todn nam.

Tai san thué thu nhdp hoan lai chi duge ghi nhén trong pham vi chiic chan ¢6 du loi nhudn tinh thué
trong twong lai dé cdc chénh 1éch tam thi nay ¢6 thé str dung dugc. Tai san thué thu nhap hoan lai
dwoc ghi giam trong pham vi khong con chiic chan la cdc 1gi ich vé thué lién quan nay sé sir dung
duoc.

Doanh thu hoat dong tai chinh va chi phi tai chinh

Doanh thu hoat déng tai chinh

Doanh thu hoat dong tai chinh bao gém thu nhap lai tién giri va cho vay, lgi nhudn duoc chia tr
HDHTKD va lai chénh léch ty gid.

Thu nhép ldi dugc ghi nhan trong béo céo két qua hoat dong kinh doanh riéng trén co s& dén tich.

Thu nhap tir Igi nhuan duoc chia tir cong ty con dugc ghi nhan khi quyen nhan lgi nhudn duoc xdc
lap. Loi nhuan nhan dugc lién quan dén giai doan trude khi mua khoan dau tr duoc ghi giam vao gid
tri ghi s6 cuia khoan dau tu.

Chi phi hoat déng tai chinh

Chi phi tai chinh bao Uam chi phi lai vay, ldi trai phiéu, phi thu xép tin dung, chi phi tai chinh, chi
phi giao dich va 15 do chenh léch ty gia.

Chi phi di vay

Chi phi di vay bao gdm chi phi lai vay, phi thu xép tin dung, chi phi tai chinh, chi phi giao dich va 1é
phi vay. Chi phi di vay dugc ghi nhan la chi phi trong ndm khi chi phi ndy phét sinh.

Cac bén lién quan

Céc bén duge xem la bén lién quan cia Cong ty néu mdt bén c6 kha nang, truc uep hay gidn tiép,
luem sodt bén kia hay c6 anh huéng ding ké dén bén kia trong viéc dua ra cdc quyét dinh anh hm:mg
dén tinh hinh ti chinh va hoat dong kinh doanh. Cdc bén ciing dugc xem la bén lién quan néu céc
bén ciing chiu sy kiém soat chung hay chiu anh hudng ddng ké chung. Cic bén lién quan c6 thé la
cic cong ty hodc cic cd nhén, bao gom ca cic thanh vién gia dinh thén cén cla céc cd nhan duogc coi
1a lién quan. Cdc bén lién quan cd nhén la cic cdn bd quan 1y chi chét ¢6 Lham quyén va trich nhiém
trong viéc 1ap ké hoach, chi dao va kiém sodt hoat dong ctia Cong ty, bao gbm cdc giam déc va cén
bo cua Cong ty. Cic cong ty lién quan bao gom cdc cbng 1y con va cong ty lién két ciia Cong ty, ciic
c6 dong va cong ty me cap cao nhat, cic cong ty con va cong ty lién két clia cdc cong ty nay.
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Cong ty C6 phin Masan ngh-Tech Materials
Thuyet minh bdo céo tai chinh riéng cho nim két thic ngay 31 thang 12 nim 2021
(tlep theo)
Miu B 09 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Théng ne s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua Bé Tai chinh)

Thong tin so sanh

Thong tin so sdnh trong bdo cdo tai chinh riéng nay dugc trinh bay dudi dang dir liéu tuong ing.
Theo phuong phdp nay, cic thong tin so sanh cua ndm trude dugce trinh bdy nhu mot phan khong thé
tach roi cua bio cdo tai chinh ky hién tai va phai dugc xem xét trong moi lién hé véi cdc sb liéu va
thuyét minh cta nam hién tai. Theo dd, thong tin so sdnh bao gbm trong bdo céo tai chinh riéng nay
khéng nham muyc dich trinh bay vé tinh hinh tai chinh, két qua hoat déng kinh doanh va luu chuyén
tién té trude hop nhat cia Cong ty trong nam trudc.

Tién va cic khoan twong dwong tién

31/12/2021 1/1/2021
Nghin VND Nghin VND
Tién giri ngdn hang ‘ 600.363 739.750
Cic khoan tuong duong tién 5.000.000 51.000.000
5.600.363 51.739.750
Phai thu ngin han va dai han khac
31/12/2021 1/1/2021
Nghin VND Nghin VND
Phii thu ngin han khéc
Phén phéi lgi nhudn phai thu tir HDPHTKD (a) 54.956.939 49.962.111
Phai thu theo HDHTKD véi NPM (b) - 1.000.000.000
Phai thu ngan han khdc tir cac cong ty con 23.695.453 -
Phai thu ngan han khic 55.000 355.000
78.707.392 1.050.317.111
Phai thu dai han khéc
Phai thu theo HDHTKD véi NPM (b) 2.000.000.000 1.000.000.000
Phai thu theo HDHTKD véi MTC (c) 1.000.000.000 1.000.000.000
3.000.000.000 2.000.000.000

(a)  Khoan phan phéi loi nhuan phai thu tir HDHTKD dya trén két qua hoat dong kinh doanh nam
hién tai ma Cong ty da ky két v&i cdc cong ty con ciia Cong ty 1a Cong ty TNHH Khai théc
Ché bién Khodng san Niii Phdo (“NPM") vi Cong ty TNHH Vonfram Masan (“MTC”) (Thuyét
minh 5(b) va Thuyel minh 5(c)).
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Cong ty Co phin Masan High-Tech Materials
Thuyet minh béo cdo tai chinh riéng cho nim két thic ngay 31 thiang 12 nim 2021
(tlep theo)
Mau B 09 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Thong te sé 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua B Tai chinh)

(b) Céc khoan phai thu theo HDHTKD phan dnh khoan déng gép cho NPM theo cic Hop dong
Hop tic Kinh doanh ngay 21 thng 9 ndm 2018 va sau d6 dwoc stra d6i nhiéu lan, theo dé Cong
ty sur dung khoan tién thu duoc tir phat hanh trdi phiéu tri gid lan lugt 1.000 ty VND, 500 ty
VND va 500 ty VND cho céc hoat dong hop téc kinh doanh véi NPM. Cic HDHTKD nay ch
thai han hop tac la sdu muoi (60) thing ké tir ngay thanh todn khoan tién hop téc cum cling
(500 ty VND) vao ngay 28 thing 5 ndm 2019. Vige hoan tra toan by hoac mot phin s6 tién hop
tac theo HDHTKD sé& dugc hai bén thoa thuan trude khi két thiic thoi han hop tdc. Theo do,
hai bén da thoa thuén théi han thanh todn khoan tién hgp tdc dau tién tri gid 1.000 ty VND la
thang 9 nam 2021 va sau d6 dugce doi lai la khi két thic thoi han hop téc.

(¢c) Céc khoan phai thu dai han khic theo HDHTKD phan dnh khoan dong gép cho MTC theo
HDHTKD ngay 16 thang 11 nam 2018 va sau d6 dugc sira dbi nhiéu 1an, theo dé Cong ty st
dung khoan tién thu dugc tir phét hanh trdi phleu tri gid 1.000 ty VND cho ciéc hoat dong hop
tac kinh doanh véi MTC. HDHTKD nay c6 thoi han hop téc 1a sdu muoi (60) thing ké tir khi
MTC nhén dugc tién tir HDHTKD vao thdng 11 nam 2018,

Viéc phén chia lgi nhudn theo cdc HDHTKD néu tai cdc myc (b) va (¢) trén duge can ctr theo
ty 1& duge quy dinh trong cac HDHTKD va cic phu luc cua HDHTKD.

Khoan phai thu khéc tir cdc cong ty con khong duoc dam bao, khong chiju 1ai va ¢6 thoi han hoan tra
theo c4c diéu khoan ciia hop ddng lién quan.

Chi phi xdy dung co ban do dang

31/12/2021 01/12/2021

Nghin VND Nghin VND
S6 du diu nam - =
Téng trong ndm 24.963.257 -
Sé dur cudi nam 24.963.257 .

Sé du chi phi xdy dyng co ban do dang thé hién chi phi lién quan dén viéc mua phin mém dé cai
thién hoat dong ctua Cong ty.

Pau tu tai chinh dai han

31/12/2021 1/1/2021
Gidgbe  Giatrihoply  Gid goc Gid tri hop Iy
Nghin VND  Nghin VND  Nghin VND  Nghin VND

Pau tw vio mdt cong ty con

Péu trr vao Cong ty TNHH

MTV Tii Nguyén Masan

Théi Nguyén (“MRTN") 12.156.476.389 (*) 12.156.476.389 (*)
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Cong ty C6 phan Masan High-Tech Materials

Thuyét minh bdo cdo tai chinh riéng cho niam két thiic ngay 31 théng 12 nim 2021

(tiép theo)

Méiu B 09 - DN

(Ban hanh theo Thong tw s6 200/2014/TT-BTC

ngay 22/12/2014 cua Bg Tai chinh)

MRTN la mdt cong ty cd phan dau tr dugce thanh 1ap tai Viét Nam. Ty 1é lgi ich tryc tiép v gidn tiép

ctia Cong ty tai MRTN la 100% tai ngay 31 thdang 12 nam 2021 (1/1/2021: 100%).

Cong ty chua xdc dinh g:a tri hcrp Iy ciia khoan dau tu nay dé thuyét minh trong bédo cdo tai chinh
riéng boi vi khong ¢6 gid niém yet trén thi truong cho cic cong cu tai chinh nay va Chuan muc Ké
todn Viét Nam, Ché do Ké todan Doanh nghiép Viét Nam hién khong c6 hudng dén vé cich tinh gla
tri hop 1y sir dung cdc k¥ thudt dinh gia. Gid tri hop 1y cua khoan dau tu naty c6 thé khéc vai tri ghi so.

Chi phi phai tra ngin han

Chi phi lai vay phai tra
Chi phi phat hanh co6 phieu
Chi phi phai tra khéc

Phai tra ngin han khac

Phai tra ngén han khic bao gém céc khoan sau:

Phai tra cho Cong ty'Cé phén Tam nhin Masan (“MH”)
- cong ty me truec tiép
Phi thuong mai — ngan han (*)

Phii tra cho Cong ty TNHH Khai thac Ché bién
Khoing sin Nii Phéo — cng ty con
Phi thuong mai — ngan han (*)

Ciac khoan khac

31/12/2021 1/1/2021
Nghin VND Nghin VND
47.442.649 45.058.494
- 42.624.809
013.684 468.020
48.356.333 88.151.323
31/12/2021 1/1/2021
Nghin VND Nghin VND
2.511.785 2.511.785
32.306.412 10.294.685
617.339 44.000
35.435.536 12.850.470

Cic khoan phai tra cdc bén lién quan khong dugc dam bao, khong chiu lai va dugc thanh todn dya

trén thoa thuan cua cac bén.
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Céng ty Co phan Masan High-Tech Materials
Thuyét minh bdo cio tai chinh riéng cho nam két thiic ngay 31 thang 12 nim 2021
(tiép theo)
Miu B 09 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Théng te s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua Bé Tai chinh)

Vay va trai phiéu

Vay va trai phiéu ngin han

1/1/2021 31/42/2021
Gia tri ghi s6 va sb Gid tri ghi s6 va s6
¢6 kha ning tra ng Ting Giam ¢6 kha nang tra ng
Nghin VND Nghin VND Nghin VND Nghin VND
Vay ngin han - 39.200.000 (18.000.000) 21.200.000
Tréi phiéu dai han dén
han tra (Thuyet minh
10(b)) 1.000.000.000 - (1.000.000.000) -
1.000.000.000 39.200.000  (1.018.000.000) 21.200.000

Vay ngan han thé hién khoan vay tir cong ty con, khong dugc dam bao va ¢6 ldi sudt tir 2,6% dén
3.2%/nam.

Trii phiéu dai han

31/12/2021 1/1/2021

Nghin VND Nghin VND
Phat hanh trdi phiéu dai han 3.000.000.000 3.000.000.000
Khoan dén han tra trong vong 12 théng - (1.000.000.000)
Khoan dén han tra sau 12 théng 3.000.000.000 2.000.000.000

Diéu khoan va dicu kién ctia trdi phiéu dai han bang VND hién con sd du nhu sau:

Niam 31/12/2021 1/1/2021
ddo han Nghin VND Nghin VND
Phét hanh trdi phiéu dai han
*  Phit hanh trdi phiéu ¢6 dam bao - 1.000.000.000
*  Phat hanh trai phiéu c6 dam bao (a) 2024 1.000.000.000 -
*  Phét hanh trai phiéu c6 dam bao (b) 2023 1.500.000.000 1.500.000.000
*  Phét hanh trdi phiéu c6 dam bao (c) 2024 500.000.000 500.000.000

3.000.000.000 3.000.000.000

17

IS/ = 2 K oM



Cong ly Co phin Masan High-Tech Materials
Thuyet minh béo cdo tai chinh riéng cho nim két thic ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2021
(tlep theo)
Miu B 09 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Théng ne s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua Bé Tai chinh)

(a)  S& trdi phiéu bing VND do Céng ty phdt hanh c6 ky han ba (3) ndm va chiju lai suél 9,2% mot
ndm trong 12 thang dau. Sau 12 thing dau tién, 1di suat nam dugc diéu chinh méi sdu thing
v tinh bing trung binh cqng ctia Iai suat tién giri tiét kiém ky han 12 théng tra 1ai sau cta céc
ngén hang tham chiéu cé lién quan cong 3, 625% Dai dién ctia céc trai chu la Cong ty Cu phan
Chimg khodn Ky thuong — cong ty lién két cua cong ty me cap cao nhat. Khoan tién nhén
duoc tir 56 trdi phiéu trén duqc str dung dé thay thé cho khoan tréi phiéu da ddo han trong nam
2021 - khoan tréi phiéu ma da duoc sir dung cho HDHTKD véi NPM (Thuyét minh 5(b)). S6
trdi phiéu nay dugc dam bao bang mot phan tai san dai han ctia mot cong ty con.

(b) 84 trdi phiéu bing VND do Cong ty phét hanh ¢6 ky han nam (5) ndm vi chiu 1ai sudt 10%
mot ndm trong 12 thang ddu. Sau 12 thang déu tién, 1ai suit nim dugc diéu chinh méi sdu
thiang v tinh bang trung binh céng cia ldi sudt tién gii tiét kiém ky han 12 thing tra I3i sau
cla cdc ngan hang tham chiéu c6 lién quan cong 3,25%. Trdi phiéu dugc dam bao bang
14,09% co phIELJ da phat hanh ciaa Cong ty nam giir boi cong ty me truc nep v mot phan tai
san dai han cua mét cong ty con. Dai dten clia cdc trdi chi 1a Cong ty C6 phan Chimg khodn
K¥ thuong. Khoan tién nhén duoc tir s6 trédi phleu trén duoce s dung cho HDHTKD vai NPM
vt MTC (Thuyét minh 5(b) and (c)).

(c) SO tréi phiéu bang VND do Cong ty phat hanh ¢6 ky han nam (5) nam va chju lai suat 10,2%
mdt ndm trong 12 thing dau. Sau 12 thing dau tién, lai suat nam duge diéu chinh mbi sdu
thang va tinh bang trung binh cong clia 13i suat tién gui tiét ki¢m ky han 12 thang tra lai sau
cua cdc ngan hang tham chiéu c6 lién quan cong 3,3%. Tréi phiéu duge dam bao bang 5,06%
c6 phiéu da phét hanh cia Céng ty nim gu_r hm cOng ty me truc tlep vl rnr;)t phan tai san dai
han cia mét cdng ty con. Dai dién cua cdc trdi chu 1a Cong ty CO phan Chimg khodn K¢
thuong. Khoan tién nhan dugc tir 5O tréi ph:eu trén duge sir dung cho HDHTKD véi NPM
(Thuyét minh 5(b)).

Thay dbi von chii s& hiru

el

="

Nz

Loi nhudn
Thing du sau thué

Vén ¢b phiin von ¢b phin chuwra phén phéi Tong cong

Nghin VND Nghin VND Nghin VND Nghin VND
S6 du tai ngay 1/1/2020 9.892.398.780 145.709.384 59.385.554 10.097.493.718
Phit hanh c6 phiéu ) ) 1.099.155.420 995.175.317 - 2.094.330.737
Chi phi phét hanh ¢ phicu - (42.624.809) - (42.624.809)
Lgi nhuén thuan trong nam - - 7.925.149 7.925.149
So dw tai ngay 1/1/2021 10.991.554.200 1.098.259.892 67.310.703 12.157.124.795
Loi nhudn thuan trong nam - - 510.158 510.158
Sé du tai ngay 31/12/2021 10.991.554.200 1.098.259.892 67.820.861 12.157.634.953
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Cong ty Cb phin Masan High-Tech Materials
Thuyet minh bdo cdo tai chinh riéng cho nim két thic ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2021
(hep theo)
Mau B 09 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Théng tr s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua Bo Tai chinh)

A A A
Von co phan
Vén cd phan dugc duyét va da phét hanh ciia Cong ty la:

~ 31/12/2021 - 1172021
S6 c6 phiéu  Nghin VND S6 6 phiéu  Nghin VND

Vén c6 phan dwge duyét  1.099.155.420 10.991.554.200 1.099.155.420 10.991.554.200

Vén ¢é phin da phat hanh

C4 phiéu phod théng 1.099.155.420 10.991.554.200 1.099.155.420 10.991.554.200
S6 6 phiéu dang lwu hanh

Cé phiéu phé théng 1.099.155.420 10.991.554.200 1.099.155.420 10.991.554.200
Thing du von cb phin - 1.098.259.892 - 1.098.259.892

Cé ph:eu pho thong ¢6 ménh gid 1a 10.000 VND. Mai co phiéu phé théng twong (g véi mot phleu
biéu quyét tai cc cude hop co déng cua Cong ty. Cic co déng dugce nhan cé tirc ma Cong ty cong bé
viio timg thoi diém. Tal ca c6 phiéu pho théng déu c6 thir tir wru tién nhu nhau ddi véi tai san con lai
ctia Cong ty. Céc quyén loi clia cic ¢6 phiéu da duge Cong ty mua lai déu bj tam ngimg cho téi khi
ching dugc phat hanh lai.

Thang du v6n ¢6 phén phan dnh phan chénh léch gifta s6 tién thu duoc tir phat hanh cb phiéu va ménh
gid co phiéu.

Trong s6 ¢6 phiéu dang luu hanh c6 109.915.542 ¢b phiéu phd théng phit hanh cho Mitsubishi
Material Corporation (Nha dau tu) vio ngay 26 thang 10 ndm 2020 véi khoan thanh todn la
2.094.330.737.268 VND. Khi phit hanh cic c6 phiéu nay, Cong ty ciing cap cho Nha dau tu mét
quyen chon ban. Theo d6, trong truomg hop (i) Cnng ty va Nha dau tu (hoac cdc bén lién két ciia Nha
diu tu) khong thé thiét 1ap duoc lién doanh cho mang kinh doanh vonfram ché bién can siu sau ngay
hoan tat viéc phit hanh cé phiéu trén hogc (i1) khi ¢ su thay d6i quyen kiém sodt déi véi Cong ty,
Nha dau tur s& c6 quyén khong huy ngang dé yéu cau Céng ty hoac bén dugc chi dinh mua tat ca céc
co phleu da phdt hanh néi trén véi gia mua bang voi khoan thanh todn 2.094. 330.737.268 VND trir
di tong s6 tien ma Nha dau tu thu duge tir viée ban co phén ctia Cong ty va tong sb cd tire va s6 loi
nhugn ma Cong ty da thanh todn, c6 thé duoc diéu chinh cho nhimg sy kién suy giam quycn s¢ hiru
trong twong lai. Han cudi dé thuc hién nhiing cong viéc can thiét nhiam hoan tit giao dich quyén chon
bén la trong vong 18 thing ké tr ngay Cong ty nhan dugc thdng bdo thuc hign quyén chon bén tur
Nha dau tu. Viéc thuc hién quyén chon bén phai ¢6 su phé duyét ciia Hoi ddng Quan tri, cdc cb dong
va ciéc co quan quan ly cua Viét Nam.
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13.

14.

15.

(a)

(b)

Cong ty Cé phan Masan High-Tech Materials

Thuyét minh bio céo tai chinh riéng cho nam két thic ngay 31 thiang 12 nam 2021

(tiép theo)

Doanh thu hoat dong tai chinh

Lai tién g

Phin chia Igi nhudn tirf HDHTKD

Chi phi tai chinh

Chi phi lai vay

Chi phi di vay va chi phi khac

Thué thu nhip

Poi chiéu thué suat thue té

Loi nhuan ké todn trude thué

Thué tinh theo thué sué! ciia Cong ty
Chi phi khong duge khau trir thué
Du phong thiéu/(thira) trong nam trudc

Thué suit 4p dung

) Miu B 09 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Thong nwe sé 200/2014/TT-BTC

ngay 22/12/2014 cua Bg Tai chinh)

2021 2020
Nghin VND Nghin VND
1.011.870 137.167
279.984.083 306.312.189
280.995.953 306.449.356
2021 2020
Nghin VND Nghin VND
271.523.054 298.399.658
485.087 1.150.436
272.008.141 299.550.094
2021 2020
Nghin VND Nghin VND
839.074 1.971.889
167.815 394.378
20.904 11.052
140.197 (6.358.690)
328916 (5.953.260)

Cong ty c6 nghia vu nop cho Nha nuéce thué thu nhap doanh nghiép bang 20% trén lgi nhuan tinh

thué.




16.

(a)

(b)

(i1)

Cong ty Co phan Masan High-Tech Materials
Thuyét minh bdo cdo tai chinh riéng cho niim két thic ngay 31 thang 12 nim 2021
(tiép theo)
Miu B 09 — DN
(Ban hanh theo Théng te sé6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua Bg Tai chinh)

rd - . bl .‘ F & # ~ A
Cac giao dich chi yeu voi cac bén lién quan
Ngoii cdc s du va giao dich vai bén lién quan dugce trinh bay tai cde thuyét minh khdc cua bdo cdo
tai chinh riéng, trong nam Cong ty ¢6 céc so du va giao dich chii yéu sau véi cdc bén lién quan:
S6 dur véi cdc bén lién quan

Tai nghy va cho nam két thic ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2021, Céng ty ¢6 cédc khoén*tién g khéng ky
han va ¢6 ky han tai Ngan hang TMCP K§ Thuong Viét Nam (“TCB”) theo cic diéu khoan giao dich
théng thudng.

Tai ngay 31 thing 12 nam 2021, cdc cong ty lién két ctia cong ty me cap cao nhat nim giir s lugng
trdi phiéu da phét hanh cua Cong ty tuong duong véi 281.499 triéu VND (1/1/2021: 67.856 triéu
VND).

Giao dich véi cac bén lién quan

2021 2020

Céc bén lién quan Bin chit ciia giao dich Nghin VND Nghin VND

Bén lién quan cia cong ty me cfip cao nhit

TCB va céc cong ty con Lai tréi phiéu 24.828.109 11.635.249
Tién thu duoc tir phét hanh trdi phiéu (i) 1.000.000.000 -
Mua lai trdi phiéu 109.198.100 "
Mua chirng khodn kinh doanh 18.118.800 .
Ban chimg khodn kinh doanh 18.208.080 "

Cac cong ty con _
Cong ty TNHH MTV Tai Gép von - 2.701.705.929
Nguyén Masan Thadi Nguyén

Cong ty TNHH Khai thic Phén chia lgi nhuédn tr HDHTKD 188.143.785 204566817

Che bién Khodng san Nii Phdo Tra ho NPM 22.799 957 i
Tra hd MHT 22.011.726

Cong ty TNHH Vonfram Masan  Phan chia lgi nhuén tir HDHTKD 91.840.299 101.745.371
Nhaén tién vay 39.200.000
Tra tién vay 18.000.000
Tra lai vay 41.030 -
Chi phi 1di vay 199.014 o
Tra h¢ MTC 895.496 2

Can bd quén Iy chi chit
Luong, thuong va cac phic lgi khac (ii) - -

Tréi phiéu da duoc niém yét va ban rong rdi cho cdc nha dau tu theo céc thoa thudn thu xép giao dich.

Céc thanh vién trong Hoi dong Quan tri khong dugc hudng bat cir khoan thi lao nao trong nam két
thic ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2021 va ngay 31 thiang 12 ndm 2020. Luong va thuéng cho Tong Gidm
déc cua Cong ty trong nam két thic ngay 31 thing 12 nam 2021 va 31 thiang 12 nam 2020 duoc chi
tra boi mot cong ty con ciia Cong ty.
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17.

Cong ty Co phén Masan High-Tech Materials
Thuyet minh béo cdo tai chinh riéng cho nim két thic ngay 31 thang 12 niim 2021
(tiép theo)
Maiu B 09 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Thong ne so 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22/12/2014 cua B¢ Tai chinh)

Trong thit lao cho Cédn bg quan 1y chii chét, thit lao thyc té ciia Hoi ddng Quan tr, lvong va thudng
cho timg thanh vién Hoi dong Quan tri cia Cong ty va Tong Gidm doc cua Cong ty trong nam nhur
sau:

2021 2020

Tén Chire vu Nghin VND  Nghin VND
Héi dong quan tri
Ong Danny Le Chu tich Héi dong Quan tri - 4
Ong Nguyén Thiéu Nam Phé Chi tich thir nhét - -
Ong Craig Richard Bradshaw Thanh vién Hai dnng Quan trj - -
Ong Akira Osada Thanh vién Hoi dong Quan tri . =
Ba Nguyén Thu Hién Thanh vién déc ldp - -
Ong Nguyén Van Thang Thénh vién Hoi dong Quan tri - -
Tong Gidgm dbc

Ong Craig Richard Bradshaw Tong Gidam déc - -

Thong tin so sanh

Thong tin so sdnh tai ngay 1 thing 1 nam 2021 dugc mang sang tir s6 liéu trinh bay trong bio cdo tai
chinh riéng ciia Céng ty tai ngay va cho nam két thic ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2020.

*

TN

Ngay 11 thang 3 nam 2022

3
=
4
7

Nguoi lap: Ngudi kiém tra:

47z

Jz}mes Wells
Gidm doc Tai chinh

Nguyén Thj Thanh Mai
Ké todn truong

Tong Giam doc
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Corporate Information

Enterprise Registration
Certificate No. 0309966889 27 April 2010

The Company’s Enterprise Registration Certificate has been amended several times, the most recent
of which was dated 11 February 2022. The Certificate and its amendments were issued by the
Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City. The first Business Registration
Certificate No. 0309966889 was issued on 27 April 2010.

Investment Certificate No. 41122000131 2 August 2013

The Investment Certificate was issued by the People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh City to the
Company to implement the investment of “Ma San Resources Corporation™ which has a term of 10
years from the date of the Investment Certificate.
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Mr. Craig Richard Bradshaw  Member
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(from 12/4/2021)
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Statement of the Board of Management

The Board of Management of Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation (“the Company™) presents
this statement and the accompanying separate financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021.

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the separate financial
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting
System for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting. In
the opinion of the Board of Management:

(a) the separate financial statements set out on pages 5 to 22 give a true and fair view of the
unconsolidated financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021, and of its
unconsolidated results of operations and unconsolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System
for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting; and

(b)  at the date of this statement, there are no reasons to believe that the Company will not be able
to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of Management has, on the date of this statement, authorised these accompanying separate
financial statements for issue.

eral Director e

Ho Chi Minh City, 11 March 2022



KPMG Limited

46" Floor, Keangnam Landmark 72
E6 Pham Hung Road, Me Tri Ward
South Tu Liem District, Hanoi, Vietnam
+84 (24) 3946 1600 | kpmg.com.vn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Shareholders
Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Masan High-
Tech Materials Corporation (“the Company”), which comprise the separate balance
sheet as at 31 December 2021, the related separate statements of income and cash
flows for the year then ended and the explanatory notes thereto which were
authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Management on 11 March 2022,
as set out on pages 5 to 22.

Management’s Responsibility

The Company's Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these separate financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and the
relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting, and for such
internal control as the Board of Management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of separate financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these separate financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the separate financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Company's Board of Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

KPMG Limited, a Vietnamese ono member limited llability company and & membar flem of the 3
KPMG global organizabion of independent member firms afMilaled with KPMG International
Limited, o private English company limited by guamanies. All rights resenved.
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Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, the separate financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material
respects, of the unconsolidated financial position of Masan High-Tech Materials
Corporation as at 31 December 2021 and of its unconsolidated results of operations and
its unconsolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and the
relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting.

KPMG Lirmied

Tran ARQGan Phan My Linh
Practicing Auditor Registration Practicing Auditor Registration
Certificate No. 0306-2018-007-1 Certificate No. 3064-2019-007-1

Deputy General Director
Hanoi, 11 March 2022
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation

Separate balance sheet as at 31 December 2021

ASSETS

Current assets (100 = 110 + 130 + 150)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash
Cash equivalents

Accounts receivable — short-term
Prepayment to suppliers
Other receivables

Other current assets
Deductible value added tax

Long term assets (200 = 210 + 220 + 240 + 250)

Accounts receivable — long-term
Other long-term receivables

Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Long-term work in progress
Construction in progress

Long-term financial investments
Investment in a subsidiary

TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 200)

Code

100

110
111
112

130
132
136

150
152

200

210
216

220
227
228
229

240
242

250
251

270

Form B 01 - DN
(Issued under Circular No, 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VND'000 VYND’000
84,602,412 1,102,056,861
5,600,363 51,739,750
600,363 739,750
5,000,000 51,000,000
78,800,192 1,050,317,111
92,800 .
78,707,392 1,050,317,111
201,857 -
201,857 -
15,181,439,646  14,156,476,389
3,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
3,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
137,950 137,950
(137,950) (137,950)
24,963,257 -
24,963,257 =
12,156,476,389  12,156.476,389
12,156,476,389  12,156.476,389
15,266,042,058  15,258,533,250

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements



Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation

Separate balance sheet as at 31 December 2021 (continued)

RESOURCES
LIABILITIES (300 = 310 + 330)

Current liabilities
Accounts payable to suppliers
Taxes payable to State Treasury
Accrued expenses
Other short-term payables
Short-term bonds and borrowings

Long-term liabilities
Long-term bonds

EQUITY (400 = 410)

Equity
Share capital
- Ordinary shares with voting rights
Share premium
Retained profits after tax
- Retained profits brought forward
- Retained profit for the current year

TOTAL RESOURCES
(440 = 300 + 400)

Prepared by:

Nguyen Thi Thanh Mai
Chief Accountant

Reviewed by:

Form B 01 - DN

(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Code

300

310
all
313
315
319
320

330
338

400

410
411
4lla
412
421
42]a
421b

440

11 March 2022

Note

8
9
10(a)

10(b)

11
12

31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VND’000 VND’000
3,108,407,105  3,101,408,455

108,407,105  1,101,408,455
3,217,708 32
197,528 406,630
48,356,333 88,151,323
35,435,536 12,850,470
21,200,000 1,000,000,000
3,000,000,000  2,000,000,000
3,000,000,000  2,000,000,000
12,157,634,953  12,157,124,795
12,157,634,953  12,157,124,795
10,991,554,200  10,991,554,200
10,991,554,200  10,991,554,200
1,098,259.892  1,098,259,892
67,820,861 67,310,703
67,310,703 59,385,554
510,158 7,925,149
15,266,042,058  15,258,533,250

General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Separate statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form B 02 - DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

2021 2020
Code Note  yNp000 VND000
Financial income 21 13 280,995,953 306,449,356
Financial expenses 22 14 272,008,141 299,550,094
General and administration expenses 26 8,148,738 5,428,920
Net operating profit
(30 = 21 - 22 - 26) 30 839,074 1,470,342
Other income 31 - 501,547
Results of other activities 501.547
(40 =31) ) 4
Accounting profit before tax
(50 = 30 + 40) 50 839,074 1,971,889
Income tax expense - current 51 15 328,916 (5,953,260)
Net profit after tax
(60 = 50 - 51) 60 510,158 7,925,149
11 March 2022
Prepared by: Reviewed by:

\/(uﬂ

Nguyen Thi Thanh Mai
Chief Accountant

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements



Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation

Separate statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2021 (Indirect method)

Form B 03 - DN

(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Code Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 01
Adjustments for
Profits from investing activities 05
Interest expense and borrowing fees 06
Operating loss before changes in
. ; 08
working capital
Change in receivables and other assets 09
Change in payables and other liabilities 11
Interest paid 14
Income tax paid 15
Net cash flows from operating activities 20

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital contribution to a subsidiary 25
Receipts of interests and dividends 27
Net cash flows from investing activities 30

2021 2020
VND’000 VYND’000
839,074 1,971,889
(280,995,953) (306,449,356)
272,008,141 298,399,658
(8,148,738) (6,077,809)
(23,690,110) (292,885)
507,671 (413,263)
(31,331,177) (6,783,957)
(269,138,899) (301,932,976)
(245,627) (300,000)
(300,715,703) (309,016,933)
- (2,701,705,929)
276,001,125 963,858,457
276,001,125  (1,737,847.,472)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation

Separate statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2021

(Indirect method - continued)

Form B 03 - DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Code

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from shares issuance and related

transaction cost 31
Proceeds from borrowings and bonds issuance 33
Payments to settle loan principals 34
Net cash flows from financing activities 40
Net cash flows during the year 50
(50 =20 + 30 + 40) .
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 60
the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 70

the year (70 = 50 + 60)

11 March 2022

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

\ e
—

Nguyen Thi Thanh Mai
Chief Accountant

Note

4

2021 2020
VND’000 VND’000
(42,624,809)  2,094,330,737

1,039,200,000 <

(1,018,000,000) :
(21,424,809)  2,094,330,737
(46,139,387) 47,466,332
51,739,750 4,273,418

5,600,363 51,739,750

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form B 09 — DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance))

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
separate financial statements.

Reporting entity

Ownership and company structure

Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation (“the Company™ or “MHT") is incorporated as a joint stock
company in Vietnam. The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had 2 employees (1/1/2021: 2 employees).

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements
applicable to financial reporting.

The Company prepares and issues its consolidated financial statements separately. For a
comprehensive understanding of the consolidated financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group™), and their consolidated results of operations and
their consolidated cash flows, these separate financial statements should be read in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Basis of measurement

The separate financial statements, except for the separate statement of cash flows, are prepared on
the accrual basis using the historical cost concept. The separate statement of cash flows is prepared
using the indirect method.

Annual accounting period

The annual accounting period of the Company is from 1 January to 31 December.

Accounting and presentation currency

The Company’s accounting currency is Vietnam Dong (“VND™), which is also the currency used for
financial statement presentation purpose. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand
(VND'000), unless otherwise indicated.

10




(a)

(b)

(e)

(d)

(e)

Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Company in the preparation
of these separate financial statements.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than VND during the year have been translated into VND at rates
approximating actual rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than VND are translated into VND
at the account transfer buying rate for assets and account transfer selling rate for liabilities at the end
of the annual accounting period quoted by the commercial bank where the Company most frequently
conducts transactions.

All foreign exchange differences are recorded in the separate statement of income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash balances and call deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
for investment or other purposes.

Investments in a subsidiary

Investment in a subsidiary is initially recognised at cost which includes purchase price plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these investments are stated
at cost less allowance for diminution in value. An allowance is made for diminution in investment
value if the investee has suffered a loss which may cause the Company to lose its invested capital,
unless there is evidence that the value of the investment has not been diminished. The allowance is
reversed if the investee subsequently made a profit that offsets the previous loss for which the
allowance had been made. An allowance is reversed only to the extent that the investment's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no allowance had
been recognised.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable from customers and other receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
doubtful debts.

Intangible fixed assets

Software

Cost of acquisition of new software, which is not an integral part of the related hardware, is
recognised as an intangible asset. Acquired software costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over
three (3) to eight (8) years.

R T==aN
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(2)

(h)

§)

(k)

Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the costs of tangible and intangible fixed assets which have not
been fully completed or installed. No depreciation is provided for construction in progress during the
period of construction and installation.

Accounts payable

Accounts payable to suppliers and other payables are stated at their cost.

Business cooperation contract

Business Cooperation Contracts (“BCC”) are those under which contracting parties agree to carry
out specific business activities that do not require an establishment of legal entity. The Company
accounts for each BCC according to its substance and its rights and obligations under the contract.
Where the Company makes contributions in the form of financial assets to the other parties and as a
result obtaining a contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets from those parties under
the BCC, the Company recognise a financial asset. Where distributions of profits from the other BCC
parties have the substance of finance income, they are recognised as financial income based on the
rate of returns as agreed by contracting parties. Distributions which are contingent on the ultimate
operating results of the BCC are recognised as income only as when the ultimate operating results of
the BCC can be determined reliably.

Bonds issued

At initial recognition, straight bonds are measured at cost which comprises proceeds from issuance
net of 1ssuance costs. Any discount, premium or issuance costs are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the bond.

Equity

Ordinary shares

Ordinary share capital is classified as equity. The excess of proceeds contributed over the par value
of shares issued is recorded as share premium. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from share premium.

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the statement of income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
to equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at
the end of the annual accounting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at end of the annual accounting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Financial income and financial expenses

Financial income

Financial income comprises interest income from deposits and loans, profit distribution from BCC
and foreign exchange gains.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues in the statement of income.,

Income from distributed profits from a subsidiary is recognized when the right to receive profit
distribution is established. Distributed profits received which are attributable to the period before
investment acquisition date are deducted from the carrying amount of the investment.

Financial expenses

Financial expenses comprise interest expenses on borrowings, bonds, facility fees, financing costs,
transaction costs and foreign exchange losses.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs comprise interest expenses on borrowings, facility fees, financing costs and
transaction costs. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Company if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control the other party or to exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control
or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities and include
close family members of any individual considered to be a related party. Related parties that are
individuals refer to key management personnel who have authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Company, including directors and officers of the
Company. Related companies refer to subsidiaries and associates of the Company, the shareholders
and the ultimate parent company and their subsidiaries and associates.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Comparative information

Comparative information in these separate financial statements is presented as corresponding figures.
Under this method, comparative information for the prior year is included as an integral part of the
current period financial statements and are intended to be read only in relation to the amounts and
other disclosures relating to the current year. Accordingly, the comparative information included in
these separate financial statements is not intended to present the Company's unconsolidated financial
position, results of operation or cash flows for the prior year.

Cash and cash equivalents

31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VND’000 YND’000
Cash in banks 600,363 739,750
Cash equivalents 5,000,000 51,000,000
5.600,363 51,739,750
Other short-term and long-term receivables
31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VND’000 VYND’000
Short-term receivables
Distribution of profit receivable from BCC (a) 54,956,939 49,962,111
Receivables under BCC with NPM (b) - 1,000,000,000
Other receivable from subsidiaries 23,695,453 -
Others 55,000 355,000
78,707,392 1,050,317,111
Long-term receivables
Receivables under BCC with NPM (b) 2.000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Receivables under BCC with MTC (c) 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
3.000,000,000 2.,000,000,000

(a)  The distribution of profit receivables were due to accrual of the current year’s operating results
as distribution of profit receivable from BCC which the Company contracted with its
subsidiaries, Nui Phao Mining Co., Ltd (“NPM”) and Masan Tungsten LLC (“MTC") (Note
5(b) and Note 5(c)).
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

(continued)
Form B 09 — DN
(Issied under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)
(b)  Receivables under BCC represents contribution to NPM under Business Cooperation Contracts

(c)

("BCCs™) dated 21 September 2018 and amended several times thereafter according to which
the Company used the bond proceeds of VND1,000 billion, VNDS500 billion and VND500
billion respectively for business cooperation activities with NPM. The BCCs have cooperation
terms of sixty (60) months from the payment date of last contribution (VNDS500 billion) on 28
May 2019. The repayment of all or partial amounts of contribution for the BCC will be agreed
by both parties before the end of the cooperation term. Accordingly, both parties agreed that
the initial repayment schedule of the first contribution of VND1,000 billion in September 2021
was rescheduled to be within the cooperation term.

The other long-term receivables under BCC represents contribution to MTC under BCC dated
16 November 2018 and amended several times thereafter according to which the Company
used the bond proceeds of VNDI,000 billion for business cooperation activities with MTC.
The BCCs have terms of sixty (60) months of cooperation from when MTC received the
proceeds from business cooperation contract in November 2018.

The sharing of profits under the above-mentioned BCCs in (b) and (c¢) are based on the agreed
rate as stipulated in the BCCs and their amendments.

The other receivables from subsidiaries were unsecured, interest free and are due in accordance with
relevant contract terms.

Construction in progress

31/12/2021 01/12/2021

VND'000 VND’000
Opening balance - -
Additions during the year 24,963,257 -
Closing balance 24,963,257 “

The balance of construction in progress represents the expense relating to software purchasing to
improve the Company’s operation.

Long-term financial investments

31/12/2021 1/1/2021
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND'000

Investment in a subsidiary

Investment in Masan Thai

Nguyen Resources Company

Limited (“MRTN") 12,156,476,389 (*) 12,156,476,389 (*)
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

MRTN is an investment holding company, incorporated in Vietnam. The direct and indirect
percentage of economic interests of the Company at MRTN is 100% as at 31 December 2021
(1/1/2021: 100%).

The Company has not determined the fair values of the equity investments for disclosure in the
separate financial statements because information about their market prices are not available and
there is currently no guidance on determination of fair value using valuation techniques under
Vietnamese Accounting Standards or the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises. The fair
values of the equity investments may differ from their carrying amounts.

Accrued expenses

31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VND’000 VND’000
Accrued interest expenses 47,442,649 45,058,494
Share issuance fee - 42,624,809
Others 913,684 468,020
48,356,333 88,151,323
Other short-term payables
Other payables included the following amounts:
31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VND’000 VND’000
Amounts due to Masan Horizon Company Limited (“MH”) - the immediate parent company
Non-trade — short-term (*) 2,511,785 2,511,785
Amount due to Nui Phao Mining Company Ltd - a subsidiary
Non-trade — short-term (*) 32,306,412 10,294,685
Others 617,339 44,000
35,435,536 12,850,470

Amounts due to related parties were unsecured, interest-free and repayable based on agreement
between the parties.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
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Form B 09 - DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Borrowings and bonds

Short-term borrowings and bonds

01/01/2021 31/12/2021

Carrying amount & Carrying amount &
amount within amount within

repayment capacity  Additions Payments repayment capacity

VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND'000
Short-term borrowings - 39,200,000 (18,000,000) 21,200,000

Current portion of long-

term bonds (Note 10(b)) 1,000,000,000 - (1,000,000,000) -
1,000,000,000 39,200,000  (1,018,000,000) 21,200,000

Short-term borrowings represents loan from subsidiary, which is unsecured with interest rate from
2.6% - 3.2% per year.

Long-term bonds

31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VIND’000 VND’000
Long-term bonds issued 3.,000.000,000 3,000,000,000

Repayable within twelve months

(1,000,000,000)

Repayable after twelve months 3,000,000,000 2,000,000,000

Terms and conditions of outstanding long-term bonds in VND were as follows:

Year of 31/12/2021 1/1/2021
maturity VND*000 VND’000
Long-term bonds issued
= Secured bond 1ssued - 1,000,000,000
= Secured bond 1ssued (a) 2024 1,000,000,000 B
= Secured bond issued (b) 2023 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000
= Secured bond issued () 2024 500,000,000 500,000,000

3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

(continued)
Form B 09 - DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)
(a)  The VND denominated bonds issued by the Company with a three-year term bore interest rate

(c)

of 9.2% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.625%. The representatives of the
bondholders is Techcom Securities Company JSC — the ultimate parent company’s associate.
The bond proceeds were used to replace another bond expired in 2021 - which were used for
the business cooperation activities with NPM (Note 5(b)). The bond was secured by a part of
certain long-term assets of a subsidiary.

The VND denominated bonds issued by the Company with a five-year term bore interest rate
of 10% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.25%. The bond was secured by
14.09% of issued shares of the Company held by the immediate parent company and a part of
certain long-term assets of a subsidiary. The representatives of the bondholders is Techcom
Securities JSC. The bond proceeds were used for the business cooperation activities with
NPM and MTC (Note 5(b) and (c)).

The VND denominated bonds issued by the Company with a five-year term bear interest rate
of 10.2% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.3%. The bond was secured by
5.06% of issued shares of the Company held by the immediate parent company and a part of
certain long-term assets of a subsidiary. The representatives of the bondholders is Techcom
Securities Company JSC. The bond proceeds were used for the business cooperation activities
with NPM (Note 5(b)).

Changes in equity

Retained profits
Share capital Share premium after tax Total
VND’000 VND’000 VND'000 VYND'000

Balance at 1/1/2020 0,892,398,780 145,709,384 59,385,554 10,097,493,718
New shares 1ssuance 1,099,155,420 005,175,317 z 2,094,330,737
Transaction cost for new share

issuance - (42,624.809) - (42,624,809)
Net profit for the year : - 7,925,149 7,925,149
Balance at 1/1/2021 10,991,554,200  1,098,259,892 67,310,703 12,157,124,795
Net profit for the year - - 510,158 510,158
Balance at 31/12/2021 10,991,554,200  1,098,259,892 67,820,861 12,157,634,953
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Share capital
The Company’s authorised and issued share capital comprised:
31/12/2021 1/1/2021
Number of Number of
shares VND’000 shares VND’000

Authorised share capital 1,099,155,420 10,991,554,200 1,099,155,420 10,991,554,200

Issued share capital

Ordinary shares 1,099,155,420 10,991,554,200 1,099,155.420 10,991,554,200
Shares in circulation

Ordinary shares 1,099,155,420 10,991,554,200 1,099,155,420 10,991,554,200
Share premium - 1,098,259,892 - 1,098,259,892

All ordinary shares have a par value of VND10,000. Each share is entitled to one vote at meetings of
the Company. Shareholders are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time. All
ordinary shares are ranked equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. In respect of shares
bought back by the Company, all rights are suspended until those shares are reissued.

Share premium represents the excess of the proceeds on issuance of shares over the par value.

Included in the shares in circulation are 109,915,542 of ordinary shares issued to Mitsubishi Material
Corporation (the Investor) on 26 October 2020 for the consideration of VND2,094,330.737.268. In
relation to this issuance, the Company also granted a put option to the Investor. In the event that (i)
the Company and the Investor (or their affiliate) fail to establish a joint operation of midstream
tungsten business after closing date of these shares issuance or (ii) if there is a change in control in
the Company, the Investor will have an irrevocable right to request the Company or its nominee to
purchase all shares issued above at the amount equal to consideration of VND2,094,330,737,268 less
the aggregate of any proceeds received by the Investor from disposing the Company’s shares,
dividends and distributions paid by the Company subject to customary adjustments from dilutive
events. The deadline to take actions necessary to effect the completion the put option is 18 month
from the date that the Company receives put option exercise notice from the Investor. The exercise
of the put option will be subject to approval of Board of Directors, shareholders and Vietnamese
regulators.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

13. Financial income
2021 2020
VYND’000 VYND’000
Interest income 1,011,870 137,167
Distribution of profit from BCC 279,984,083 306,312,189
280,995,953 306,449,356
14. Financial expenses
2021 2020
VND'000 VND'000
Interest expense 271,523,054 298,399,658
Borrowing fee and others 485,087 1,150,436
272,008,141 299,550,094
15. Income tax
(a) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
2021 2020
VND’000 VND’000
Accounting profit before tax 839,074 1,971,889
Tax at the Company tax rate 167,815 394,378
Non-deductible expenses 20,904 11,052
Under/(over) provision in prior year 140,197 (6,358.690)
328,916 (5,953,260)
(b)  Applicable tax rates

The Company has an obligation to pay the government income tax at the rate of 20% of taxable profits.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

Form B 09 — DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Significant transactions with related parties

In addition to related party balances and transactions disclosed in other notes to these separate
financial statements, the Company had the following significant balances and transactions with
related parties during the year:

Related party balances

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has current and term deposit accounts
at Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“TCB™) at normal commercial terms.

As at 31 December 2021, associates of the ultimate parent company held VND281,499 million
(1/1/2021: VND67,856 million) of the issued bonds of the Company.

Related party transactions

: - 2021 2020

Related Parties Nature of transactions VND’000 VND'000

Ultimate parent company’s associate

TCB and its subsidiaries Bond interest 24,828,109 11,635,249
Bond proceeds received (i) 1,000,000,000 -
Bond repurchased 109,198,100 -
Purchase of trading securities 18,118,800 -
Sales of trading securities 18,208,080 .

Subsidiaries

Masan Thai Nguyen Capital contribution - 2,701,705,929

Resources Company Limited

Nui Phao Mining Co., Ltd  Distribution of profit from BCC 188,143,785 204,566,817
Payment on behalf of NPM 22,799,957 -
Payment on behalf of MHT 22,011,726 -

Masan Tungsten LLC Distribution of profit from BCC 91,840,299 101,745,371
Loan received 39,200,000 -
Loan paid 18,000,000 -
Loan interest paid 41,030 -
Loan interest expense 199,014 -
Payment on behalf of MTC 895,496 -

Key management personnel

Salary, bonus and other benefits (ii)

The bonds are listed and sold to a broader set of investors pursuant to arrangement agreements.

No board fees were paid to Board of Directors members for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020. Salary and bonus for the General Director of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are paid out by a subsidiary of the Company.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Notes to the separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

Form B 09 — DN

(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Included in the remuneration to key management personnel, the actual board fees, salary and bonus
for each member of the Company’s Board of Directors and the Company’s General Director during
the year were as follows:

2021 2020

Name Position VND’000 VND’000
Board of Directors

Mr. Danny Le Chairman - -
Mr. Nguyen Thieu Nam First Vice Chairman - -
Mr. Craig Richard Bradshaw Member - -
Mr. Akira Osada Member - -
Ms. Nguyen Thu Hien Independent member - -
Mr. Nguyen Van Thang Member - -

General Director
Mr. Craig Richard Bradshaw General Director - -

17. Comparative information

Comparative information as at 1 January 2021 was derived from the balances and amounts reported
in the Company’s separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

11 March 2022
Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Nguyen Thi Thanh Mai
Chief Accountant
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Corporate Information

Enterprise Registration
Certificate No. 0309966889 27 April 2010

The Company’s Enterprise Registration Certificate has been amended several times, the most recent
of which was dated 11 February 2022. The Certificate and its amendments were issued by the
Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City. The first Business Registration
Certificate No. 0309966889 was issued on 27 April 2010.

Investment Certificate No. 41122000131 2 August 2013

The Investment Certificate was issued by the People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh City to the
Company to implement the investment of “Ma San Resources Corporation” which has a term of 10
years from the date of the Investment Certificate.

Board of Directors Mr. Danny Le Chairman
Mr. Nguyen Thieu Nam First Vice Chairman
Mr. Craig Richard Bradshaw Member
Mr. Akira Osada Member (from 12/4/2021)
Ms. Nguyen Thu Hien Independent member
(from 12/4/2021)
Mr. Nguyen Van Thang Member (until 12/4/2021)
Board of Management Mr. Craig Richard Bradshaw General Director
Mr. Hady Seyeda Deputy General Director
(from 12/4/2021)
Mr. Stuart James Wells Chief Financial Officer
Registered Office Suite 802, 8" Floor, Central Plaza Building

No. 17 Le Duan, Ben Nghe Ward, District 1
Ho Chi Minh City
Vietnam

Auditor KPMG Limited
Vietnam
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation
Statement of the Board of Management

The Board of Management of Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation (“the Company”) presents
this statement and the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group™) as of and for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese
Accounting System for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial
reporting. In the opinion of the Board of Management:

(a)  the consolidated financial statements set out on pages 5 to 71 give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of their consolidated
results of operations and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and
the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are no reasons to believe that the Group will not be able to

pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of Management has, on the date of this statement, authorized these accompanying
consolidated financial statements for issue.

General Director

Ho Chi Minh City, 11 March 2022
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KPMG Limited

46" Floor, Keangnam Landmark 72
E6 Pham Hung Road, Me Tri Ward
South Tu Liem District, Hanoi, Vietnam
+84 (24) 3946 1600 | kpmg.com.vn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders
Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Masan
High-Tech Materials Corporation (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as at
31 December 2021, the related consolidated statements of income and cash flows
for the year then ended and the explanatory notes thereto which were authorised
for issue by the Company's Board of Management on 11 March 2022, as set out on
pages 5to 71.

Management’s Responsibility

The Company's Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for
enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting,
and for such internal control as the Board of Management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Board of Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

KPMG Limited, a Vieinamese one member limited liability company and a member firm of the 3
KPMG global erganization of indapandent membar fiems affiliated with KPMG Infernational
Limitad, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved,
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Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all
material respects, of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2021 and of their consclidated results of operations and their consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements
applicable to financial reporting.

KPMG Limited

e e

Phan My Linh
Practicing Auditor Registration Practicing Auditor Registration
Certificate No. 0306-2018-007-1 Certificate No. 3064-2019-007-1

Deputy General Director
Hanoi, 11 March 2022
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021
Form B 01 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

31/12/2021 1/1/2021
Code Note  “yND000 VND’000
ASSETS
Current assets
(100 = 110 + 120 + 130 + 140 + 150) 100 10,576,736,330 9,756,298,985
Cash and cash equivalents 110 5 1,043,789,572 761,930,286
Cash 111 644,789,572 705,930,286
Cash equivalents 112 399,000,000 56,000,000
Short-term financial investments 120  6(a) 7,400,000 -
Held-to-maturity investments 123 7,400,000 -
Accounts receivable — short-term 130 2,652,953,397 2,771,124,731
Accounts receivable from customers 131 7 1,988,261,387 1,166,693,898
Prepayments to suppliers 132 243,425,908 139,861,845
Loan receivables 135 8 - 1,143,479,452
Other receivables 136 9 421,266,102 321,089,536
Inventories 140 10 5,930,372,391 4,880,128,480
Inventories 141 5,958,352,149 4,969,141,648
Allowance for inventories 149 (27.979,758) (89,013,168)
Other current assets 150 942,220,970 1,343,115,488
Short-term prepaid expenses 151 46,128,020 56,241,220
Deductible value added tax 152 896,037,352 1,286,793,842
Taxes and others receivable from
State Treasury 153 55,598 80,426

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021 (continued)

Long term assets

(200 =210 + 220 + 230 + 240 + 250 + 260)

Accounts receivable — long-term
Other long-term receivables

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Finance lease tangible fixed assets
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Intangible fixed assets
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Investment property
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Long-term work in progress
Construction in progress

Long-term financial investments

Investments in associates, joint ventures

Held-to-maturity investments
Other long-term assets

Long-term prepaid expenses
Deferred tax assets

TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 200)

Code

200

210
216

220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229

230
231
232

240
242

250
252
255

260
261
262

270

Note

9

11

13

15

21(a)

Form B 01 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

31/12/2021
VND’000

28,774,460,852

1,344,574,789
1,344,574,789

21,507,557,062
17.916,829,652

29,323,337,078

(11,406,507,426)

67,300,000

1/1/2021
VYND’000

30,352,548,829

1,298,310,451
1,298,310,451

23,784,752,467

19,826,833,068
30,478,383,425
(10,651,550,357)

67,300,000

(67,300,000) (67,300,000)
3,590,727,410 3,957,919,399
4,500,413,119 4,693,664, 166

(909,685,709) (735,744,767)

800,547,308 -

1,156,174,253 -

(355,626,945) -
1,157,484,188 1,467,480,229
1,157,484,188 1,467,480,229

180,510,490 202,627,868

180,510,490 195,227,868

= 7,400,000
3,783,787,015 3,599,377,814
3,486,983,142 2,905,894,138

296,803,873 693,483,676

39,351,197,182  40,108,847,814

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements




Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021 (continued)

Form B 01 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

31/12/2021 1/1/2021
Code: Mote VND’000 VND’000
RESOURCES
LIABILITIES (300 = 310 + 330) 300 25,010,017,858  26,029,306,779
Current liabilities 310 7,877,179,852 7,508,154,152
Accounts payable to suppliers 311 1,508,640,236 952,963,298
Advances from customers 312 16 34,709,351 955,735,222
Taxes payable to State Treasury 313 17 166,958,554 162,676,781
Payables to employees 314 4,777,953 16,064,491
Accrued expenses 315 18 1,000,544,438 944,647,799
Other short-term payables 319 19 342,355,463 306,683,463
Short-term borrowings and bonds 320 20(a) 4,800,093,173 4.162,866,240
Provisions — short-term 321 19,100,684 6,516,858
Long-term liabilities 330 17,132,838,006 18,521,152,627
Other long-term payables 337 - 500,170
Long-term borrowings and bonds 338  20(b) 9,238,202,894 9,220,442.520
Deferred tax liabilities 341  21(a) 1,543.,909,966 1,842.833,535
Provisions — long-term 342 22 6,350,725,146 7,457,376,402
EQUITY (400 =410) 400 14,341,179,324 14,079,541,035
Equity 410 23 14,341,179,324 14,079,541,035
Share capital 411 24 10,991,554,200 10,991,554,200
- Ordinary shares with voting rights 41la ' 10,9971,554,200 10,991,554,200
Share premium 412 24 1,098,259,892 1,098,259,892
Other capital 414 (295,683,347) (295,683,347)
Foreign exchange differences 417 (365,829,110) (189,058,584)
Other equity funds 420 (170,252,387) (358,967,342)
Retained profits after tax 421 2,962,204,732 2,766,593,412
- Retained profits brought forward 421a 2,766,593,412 2,727,397,449
- Retained profit for the current year 421b 195,611,320 39,195,963
Non-controlling interest 429 120,925,344 66.842.804
TOTAL BESOURCES 440 39,351,197,182  40,108,847,814

(440 = 300 + 400)

11 March 2022

Prepared by: Reviewed by: ed by
, A
q’ 4
/ M

Nguyen Thi Thanh Mai
Chief Accountant

StuartJames Wells
tnancial Officer

eHard Bradshaw

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries

Consolidated statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2021
Form B 02 — DN/HN

Revenue from sales of goods and
provision of services

Revenue deductions

Net revenue (10 =01 - 02)

Cost of sales

Gross profit (20 =10 - 11)

Financial income

Financial expenses

Share of profit/(loss) in associates
Selling expenses

General and administration expenses

Net operating profit/(loss)
(30=20+21-22+24-25-26)

Other income
Other expenses

Results of other activities
(40=31-32)

Accounting profit/(loss) before tax
(50 =30 + 40)

Income tax expense — current

Income tax benefit — deferred

Net profit after tax
(60 =50 - 51 - 52)
(carried to next page)

Code

01

02

10

11

20

21
22
24
25
26

30

50

51

52

60

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Note

26

27
28

29
30

31
32

33

33

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

2021 2020

VND’000 VND’000
13,583,641,781 7,365,774,085
19,351,935 74,593,427
13,564,289,846 7,291,180,658
11,293,885,339 7,113,222,006
2,270,404,507 177,958,652
344,622,946 646,482,348
1,435,452,204 1,652,967.999
3,064,567 (29,488,203)
445,622,393 226,224,066
638,030,680 282,149,068
98,986,743 (1,366,388,336)

142,172,892

1,328,986,068

84,643,721 58,808,571
57,529,171 1,270,177,497
156,515,914 (96,210,839)
59,707,083 20,654,658
(164,314,798) (168,656,455)
261,123,629 51,790,958

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Consolidated statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Form B 02 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

2021 2020
Code Note  yNpo0o VND'000
Net profit after tax
(60 =50-51-52) 60 261,123,629 51,790,958
(brought from previous page)
Net profit attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company 61 195,611,320 39,195,963
Non-controlling interest 62 65,512,309 12,594,995
VND VND
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (VND) 70 34 178 39

11 March 2022

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

7

Nguyen Thi Thanh Mai
Chief Accountant

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2021
(Indirect method)
Form B 03 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

2021 2020
Code: Nife unimioon VND’000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax 01 156,515,914 (96,210,839)
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 02 1.588,610,779 1,557,239,244
Negative goodwill on acquisition of a subsidiary 02 - (1,298,081,205)
Allowances and provisions 03 (16,222,267) 160,371,671
Exchange losses arising from revaluation of
monetary items 04 15,702,294 2,888,194
Profits from investing activities 05 (13,211,344) (22,087,236)
Interest expense and borrowing fees 06 28 1,145,321,327 1,278,848,458
Operating profit before changes in 08 2,876,716,703 1,582,968 287

working capital

Change in receivables and other assets 09 (716,340,962) (216,175,072)
Change in inventories 10 (989,210,501) (145,583,894)
Change in payables and other liabilities 11 (353,209,060) (573,206,231)
Change in prepaid expenses 12 43,334,353 (209,068,012)
861,290,533 438,935,078
Interest paid 14 (1,330,110.196) (1,248,770,678)
Income tax paid 15 (123,278,973) (154.592,2006)
Net cash flows from operating activities 20 (592,098,636) (964,427,806)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for additions to fixed assets and other

long-term assets 2] (921,559.976) (1,474,237,254)

Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and

other long-term assets 22 21,625,809 12,765,546

Payments for term deposit and granting loans to

other parties 23 - (1,931,153,425)

Term deposits received and receipts from

collecting loans 24 1,143,479,452 1,787,321,421

Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 25 26,476,816  (1,053,739.472)

Receipt of interest 27 29,522,173 34,978,354
Net cash flows from investing activities 30 299,544,274  (2,624,064,830)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2021
(Indirect method - continued)
Form B 03 —- DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

2021 2020
Code Note  yNp000 VND’000

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from shares issuance and related

transaction cost 31 (42,624,809) 2,094,330,737

Proceeds from borrowings and bonds 33 6,608,097,474 13,350,232,314

Payments to settle loan principals and bond

issuance related costs 34 (5,988,605,407) (12,814,978,565)
Net cash flows from financing activities 40 576,867,258 2,629,584,486
Net cash flows during the year
(50 = 20 + 30 + 40) 50 284,312,896 (958,908,150)
gi;s:eaar;d cash equivalents at the beginning of 60 761,930,286 1,723,204,606
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on cash and
cash equivalents 61 (2,453,610) (2,366,170)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year (70 = 50 + 60 + 61) 70 5 1,043,789,572 761,930,286

11 March 2022
_/):;
Prepared by: Reviewed by: z ~Approved by: ?9
TR,
z

Nguyen Thi Thanh Mai
Chief Accountant

Stuart James Wells : gl & RiChard Bradshaw
hief Einancial Officer eneral Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Reporting entity

Ownership structure

Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation (“the Company” or “MHT") is incorporated as a joint stock
company in Vietnam.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”).

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries and associate are described as follows:

12



Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Subsidiaries:
Percentage of
Name Address Principal activity economic interests at
31/12/2021 and 1/1/2021

Direct subsidiary

Masan Thai Nguyen Resources Company Limited (i) Ho Chi Minh City Investment holding 100%

(“MRTN")

Indirect subsidiaries

Thai Nguyen Trading and Investment Company (i) Ho Chi Minh City Investment holding 100%

Ltd (“TNTI")

Nui Phao Mining Company Limited (“NPM™) (i) Thai Nguyen Province Exploring and processing mineral (*) 100%

Masan Tungsten Limited Liability Company (i) Thai Nguyen Province Deep processing of nonferrous metals and precious metals 100%:

(*“MTC") (Tungsten)

H.C. Starck Holding (Germany) GmbH (“HCS™) (i) Goslar, Germany Investment holding 100%

{

ChemilLytics Beteiligungs GmbH (ii) Goslar, Germany Investment holding 100%

H.C. Starck GmbH (ii) Goslar, Germany Investment holding 100%

Chemische Fabriken Oker und Branschweig AG (i1) Goslar, Germany Producing chemicals utilized in the manufacturing of paper 100%
and additives for the absorptive materials industry

H.C. Starck Infrastructure GmbH & Co. KG (i) Munich, Germany Deep processing of nonferrous metals and precious metals 100%
(Tungsten)

ChemiLytics GmbH & Co. KG (ii) Goslar, Germany Chemical analysis and physical measurement data 100%

H.C. Starck Tungsten GmbH (i) Munich, Germany Deep processing of nonferrous metals and precious metals 100%
(Tungsten)

13



Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Name

H.C. Starck Nonferrous Metals Trading (i1)
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd.

H.C. Starck Canada Inc. (i1)
H.C. Starck Tungsten GK (ii)
H.C. Starck Tungsten LLC (ii)
H.C. Starck Jiangwu Tungsten Specialities (ii)

(Ganzhou) Co., Ltd.

Associates

Name

Indirect associates
Jiangwu H.C. Starck Tungsten Products Co., Ltd. (ii)

(i) HCS is subsidiary of MTC. MTC is a subsidiary of NPM. TNTI and NPM are subsidiaries of MRTN. MRTN is a subsidiary of the Company.

Address

Shanghai, PRC
Sarnia, Ontario,
Canada

Tokyo, Japan
Newton, USA

Ganzhou, China

Address

Ganzhou, China

(ii) These entities are direct and indirect subsidiaries and associate of HCS.

Form B 09 - DN/HN

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Principal activity

Trading and distribution

Deep processing of nonferrous metals and precious metals
(Tungsten)

Trading and distribution
Trading and distribution

Deep processing of nonferrous metals and precious metals
(Tungsten)

Principal activity

Deep processing of nonferrous metals and precious metals
(Tungsten)

Bk oA & e P et . S i

Percentage of
economic interests at
31/12/2021 and 1/1/2021

100%

100%

100%
100%

60%

Percentage of
economic interests at
31/12/2021 and 1/1/2021

30%

14



(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

(*) NPM'’s principal activities are to explore, exploit, mine and process tungsten, fluorite, bismuth,
copper under the “Nui Phao Mining Project” in Ha Thuong Commune, Dai Tu District in Thai
Nguyen Province for export and domestic sales. The “Nui Phao Mining Project” is under
Investment Certificate No. 17121000026 which expires on 2 February 2034.

(**) HCS is a leading manufacturer of high-tech tungsten metal powders and carbides (midstream
tungsten products). HCS has production hubs in Europe, North America, and China serving
customers across the globe. HCS and its subsidiaries mainly specialize in the development,
manufacture and sale of high-performance powders based on the technology of metal tungsten
and its compounds, tailored to individual customer needs.

The percentage of economic interests represents the effective percentage of economic interests of the
Company both directly and indirectly in the subsidiaries. The percentage of voting right equals the
percentage of economic interests, unless otherwise indicated.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 2,148 employees (1/1/2021: 2,028 employees).

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and the relevant statutory
requirements applicable to financial reporting.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements, except for the consolidated statement of cash flows, are
prepared on the accrual basis using the historical cost concept. The consolidated statement of cash
flows is prepared using the indirect method.

Annual accounting period

The annual accounting period of the Company and its subsidiaries are from 1 January to 31
December.

Accounting and presentation currency

The Group’s accounting currency is Vietnam Dong (“VND™), which is also the currency used for
financial statement presentation purpose. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand
(“VND'000"), unless otherwise indicated.




(a)
(i)

Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Group in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method as at the acquisition date, which
is the date on which control is transferred to the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration the potential voting rights that currently are
exercisable.

Under the purchase method, the assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are consolidated using
their fair values. Cost of a business combination (cost of the acquisition) is the aggregate amount of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the acquirer in the acquisition in exchange for control of the acquiree and any
costs directly attributable to the business combination. Identifiable assets acquired, identifiable
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date.

Any goodwill that arises representing the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree is recognised in consolidated balance sheet, then amortised through to the consolidated
statement of income. When the excess is negative (gain from bargain purchase), it is recognised in
the consolidated statement of income for the current year after a reassessment has been performed to
ensure that the measurement of identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed and the cost of the business combination appropriately reflects consideration of all available
information as of the acquisition date.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs as the result of fair values of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
or contingent liabilities or the cost of the combination being only provisionally determined, the Group
shall account for such business combination at provisional amounts. During twelve months from the
acquisition date (i.e. the measurement period), the Group shall retrospectively adjust the provisional
amounts recognised at the acquisition date.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the
Group incurred in connection with business combinations included any costs directly attributable to
the combination, such as professional fees paid to accountants, legal advisers, valuers and other
consultants to effect the combination. Transaction costs are capitalised into the cost of business
combination. General administrative costs and other costs that cannot be directly attributed to the
particular combination being accounted for are not included in the cost of the combination; they are
recognised as an expense when incurred.
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(ii)

(1i1)

(iv)

(v)

Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that currently are exercisable are taken into account. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) are measured by their proportionate economic interest in the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets at date of acquisition.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as transactions with owners. In accordance with Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC issued by the
Ministry of Finance providing guidance on preparation and presentation of consolidated financial
statements (“Circular 202”) which was applied prospectively from 1 January 2015, the difference
between the change in the Group’s share of net assets of the subsidiary and any consideration paid or
received is recorded directly in retained profits under equity.

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the
financial and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds
between 20 and 50 percent of the voting power. Associates are accounted for using the equity method.
They are initially recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit and loss of
an associate, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date
that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. The carrying
amount of investments in associates is also adjusted for the alterations in the investor's proportionate
interest in the investees arising from changes in the investee's equity that have not been included in
the income statement (such as revaluation of fixed assets, or foreign exchange translation differences,
etc.).

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of that
interest (including any long-term investments) is reduced to nil and the recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf
of the investee.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group transactions, balances, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. However, foreign
currency difference arising on intra-group monetary items, whether short-term or long-term are
recorded in the consolidated statement of income. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
transactions with associates are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee.
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(vi)

(b)

(i)

Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiary. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Cost of goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree in exchange for control of the acquire, plus any costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

When the excess is negative (gain from bargain purchase), it is recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of income.

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than VND during the year have been translated into VND at rates
approximating actual rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than VND are translated into VND
at the account transfer buying rate for assets and account transfer selling rate for liabilities at the end
of the annual accounting period quoted by the commercial bank where the Company or its
subsidiaries most frequently conducts transactions.

All foreign exchange differences are recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

Foreign operations

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
foreign operations are translated to VND as follow:

=  Assets and liabilities including fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to
VND at the account transfer buying rate (for assets) and the account transfer selling rate (for
liabilities) at the end of the accounting period quoted by the commercial bank where the
Company most frequently conducts transactions;

*  Revenues, income, expenses and cash flows of foreign operations are translated to VND at
exchange rates at which approximate actual exchange rates ruling on the dates of transactions;

=  Retained profits/Accumulated losses, funds and reserves are derived from the translated net
profits/movement from which they were appropriated.

Foreign currency differences arising from the translation of foreign operations’ financial statements
to VND are recognised in the balance sheet under the caption “Foreign exchange differences” in
equity. When the foreign currency differences relate to a foreign operation that is consolidated but
not wholly owned, accumulated exchange differences arising from translation and attributable to non-
controlling interests are allocated to, and recognised as part of, non-controlling interests in the
consolidated balance sheet.
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(e)

Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash balances and call deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
for investment or other purposes.

Investments

Trading securities

Trading securities are those held by the Group for trading purpose i.e. purchased for resale with the
aim of making profits over a short period of time. Trading securities are initially recognized at cost
which include purchase price plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at cost less allowance for diminution in value. An allowance is made
for diminution in value of trading securities if there is evidence that market price of the securities
item falls below its carrying amount. The allowance is reversed if the market price subsequently
increases after the allowance was recognised. An allowance is reversed only to the extent that the
securities’ carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that has been determined if no
allowance had been recognised.

Held to maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are those that the Group’s management has the intention and ability to
hold until maturity. Held-to-maturity investments include term deposits at bank, bonds and loan
receivables held to maturity. These investments are stated at cost less allowance for doubtful debts.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable from customers and other receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
doubtful debts,

Factoring

Depending on market conditions and liquidity requirements, the Group enters into factoring
agreements to transfer trade receivables. For factoring transactions, the Group assesses whether trade
receivables can be derecognised in their entirety or not, basing on the extent to which it retains the
risks and rewards of ownership of the trade receivables.

If the Group:

* transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the receivables, the Group
derecognises the receivables and recognises separately as asset or liability any rights and
obligations created or retained in the transfer;

* retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the receivables, the Group
continues to recognise the receivables;

* neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
receivables, the Group determines whether it has retained control. If the Group does not retain
control, it derecognises the receivables and recognises separately as assets or liabilities any rights
and obligations created or retained in the transfer. If the Group retains control, it continues to
recognise the receivables to the extent of its continuing involvement in the receivables.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

The extent of continuing involvement in the transferred assets is the extent to which it is exposed to
changes in the value of the transferred assets, which is the lower of the carrying amount of assets and
the maximum amount of the consideration that the Group could be required to pay (“the guarantee
amount”).

When the Group continues to recognise an asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The associated liability is initially measured at the guarantee
amount plus the fair value of the guarantee. Subsequently the initial fair value of the guarantee is
recognised in the consolidated income statement on a time proportion basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and includes all costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost in the case of finished goods and work in progress includes raw materials, direct
labour and attributable mining and manufacturing overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price of inventory items, less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs to sell.

The Group applies the perpetual method of accounting for inventories.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

Upon completion of the mine construction phase, the assets are transferred into “building and
structures”, “machinery and equipment” or “other mining assets” in tangible fixed assets. Tangible
fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible fixed asset
comprises its purchase price or construction cost, including import duties, non-refundable purchase
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on
which it is located. Expenditure incurred after tangible fixed assets have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally charged to the statement of income in the
year in which the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of tangible fixed assets beyond their originally assessed standard of performance, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of tangible fixed assets.

If the self-constructed tangible assets have been completed and are put into used but their cost is not
finalised, their historical cost will be recorded at a temporarily estimated value and they shall be
adjusted with the difference after the finalised cost are approved.

Other mining assets comprise mine rehabilitation assets; and fair value of mineral reserves and
mineral resources from business combination.
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Depreciation

NPM: Machinery and equipment directly related to mineral processing activities and fair value of
mineral reserves from business combination

Machinery and equipment which are directly related to mineral processing activities and fair value
of mineral reserves from business combination are depreciated on a unit-of-production method with
the depreciation bases calculated using the proved and probable mineral reserve and a portion of
resources expected to be converted into reserves.

Effective from 1 January 2021, the Group updated its estimates of mineral reserves and resources,
using (i) the result of mining specialist’s technical assessments on mineral reserve within Nui Phao
project area, (ii) a portion of mineral resources expected to be converted into reserves and (iii) further
mineral resource which can be reprocessed from the NPM’s oxide tails cell (“OTC”). These updates
are estimates of the amount of production volume that can be economically and legally extracted
from the Group’s mining properties.

Detail of changes in the remaining ore equivalent quantity served as depreciation basis as at 1 January
2021 are as follow:
Increased by
Tonnes of ore

M&E relating to mineral processing activities 6,422,588
M&E relating to mineral processing activities and to be used in OTC retreatment 21,742,588
Fair value of mineral reserves from business combination 21,742,588

These changes lead to a decrease by VND207 billion in the depreciation charge for the current year.

MTC: Machinery and equipment directly related to production activities

Machinery and equipment which are directly related to the deep processing of tungsten products of
MTC are depreciated over its estimated useful lives on a units of production basis. The estimated
total production quantity output which the tangible fixed assets are depreciated on a unit-of-
production basis are as follows:

ST plant 171,865 tonnes of tungsten
APT plant 166,990 tonnes of tungsten
Others

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed
assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

* buildings and structures 5 —40 years
* machinery and equipment 3 - 22 years
= office equipment 3 — 10 years
= motor vehicles 3 - 25 years
=  other mining assets 26 years

Construction asset which are completed and put into use before construction costs being finalised,
are stated at provisional cost. On the date the construction costs are finalised and approved,
provisional cost shall be adjusted to finalise cost and accumulated depreciation shall not be adjusted.
The subsequent depreciation charge is determined as the approved value minus the accumulated
depreciation made for the period up to the approval of finalisation of fixed asset divided by the
remaining depreciation period of the fixed asset according to relevant regulations.
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(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

In the current period, due to changes in estimation from latest mineral reserve assessment and OTC
retreatment project as disclosed in Note 3(g)(ii) for Machinery and equipment directly related to
mineral processing activities above, NPM revised estimated useful life of certain group of assets.
These changes lead to a decrease by VND26 billion in the depreciation charge for the current year.

The revised estimated useful lives are as follows:

2021 2020
*  buildings and structures 5 - 27 years 5 - 20 years
*  machinery and equipment 3 - 22 years 3 - 20 years
=  other mining assets 26 years 19 years

Intangible fixed assets

Land

Lands comprise those acquired in a legitimate transfer. Lands are stated at cost and are not amortised.

Software

Cost of software includes:

* Cost of acquisition of new software, which is not an integral part of the related hardware, is
capitalised and treated as an intangible asset. Acquired software costs are amortised on a straight-
line basis over three (3) to eight (8) years;

= Cost incurred during software development phase when following conditions are met:
o Respective costs are attributable directly to the software development stage;

o There is well-founded expectation — verifiable by program designs, models, or the like that
the Group has intention to complete the development project and use or sell it;

o The Group will be able to implement and use the software after its development;

o Adequate technical, financial and human resources should be available to complete the
software development successfully;

o The Group is able to measure expenditures attributable to the software development project
reliably.

Developed software is amortised on a straight-line basis over period of up to four (4) years
starting from the date on which the respective modules are completed.
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Mining rights

The mining rights are calculated based on the remaining exploitable reserves multiplied with the price
as announced by the provincial authorities in accordance with Decree 67/2019/ND-CP dated 31 July
2019 (“Decree 67") which became effective from 15 September 2019, replacing Decree
203/2013/ND/CP dated 28 November 2013. Cost of mining rights was stated at an amount equal to
the present value of mining rights fee and was capitalised and treated as an intangible asset.
Amortisation of mining rights is computed on a straight-line basis over the economic life of the
proved and probable mineral reserve and a portion of resources expected to be converted into
reserves.

Development costs

Cost of development costs include:

* Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design
for the production of new or substantially improved products and process, is capitalised if the
product or process is technically and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources to complete development. The expenditure capitalised include the costs of materials,
direct labour and an appropriate portion of overheads. Other development expenditure, including
expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in the consolidated
statement of income as an expense as incurred;

* Development costs that are acquired by the Group through business combinations are capitalised
and presented as an intangible fixed asset. The fair value of development costs are amortised on
a straight-line basis over period from 10 to 16 years.

The fair value of development costs acquired through business combinations is determined using
the incremental cash flow method, whereby the subject assets are valued after deducting a fair
return on all other assets that are part of creating the related cash flows.

Brand name

Cost of acquisition of brand name is recognised as an intangible asset.

The fair value of brand name acquired in a business combination is based on the discounted estimated
royalty payments that have been avoided as a result of the brand name being owned. The fair value
of brand name acquired in a business combination is recognised as an intangible asset and is
amortized on a straight-line basis over periods ranging from 20 to 30 years.

Customer relationship

Customer relationships that are acquired by the Group through business combinations are capitalised
and presented as an intangible fixed asset. The fair value of customer relationships are amortised on
a straight-line basis over period of 36 years.

The fair value of customer relationships acquired through business combinations is determined using

the multi-period excess earnings method, whereby the subject assets are valued after deducting a fair
return on all other assets that are part of creating the related cash flows.
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Technologies

Technologies that are acquired by the Group through business combinations are recognised as
intangible fixed assets and are initially measured at fair value. Technologies are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their useful lives ranging from 16 to 31 years.

The fair value of technologies acquired through business combinations are determined using the
multi-period excess earnings method whereby the subject assets are valued after deducting a fair
return on all other assets that are part of creating the related cash flows and/or based on the discounted
estimated royalty payments that have been avoided as a result of the technologies being owned.

Investment property
Investment property held to earn rental

Cost

Investment property held to earn rental is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial
cost of an investment property held to earn rental comprises its purchase price, cost of land use rights
and any directly attributable expenditures of bringing the property to the condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Board of Management. Expenditure incurred
after the investment property held to earn rental has been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is charged to the consolidated statement of income in the year in which the expenditure
is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in
future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing
investment property held to earn rental, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the
investment property.

Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of investment
property. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

=  buildings 40 - 60 years

Lands are recognized by historical cost and are not amortised.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress mainly represents mineral assets under development and cost of construction
and machinery which have not been fully completed, installed and commissioned. It also comprises
land compensation, mineral reserves, mineral resources and related development expenditure. These
assets qualify for capitalisation when the mineral reserves to which they relate is proven to be
commercially and technically viable. They are capitalised net of proceeds from the sale of
commissioning products during the development phase. On completion of construction defined as
the time when the assets are brought into the condition of its intended use, all assets are reclassified
to tangible fixed assets as either “buildings and structures”, “machinery and equipment” or “other
mining assets™’; or long-term prepaid expenses as “other mining costs”.

No depreciation is provided for construction in progress during the period of development,
construction, installation and commissioning stages.
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(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Long-term prepaid expenses

Prepaid land costs

Prepaid land costs comprise prepaid land lease rentals, including those for which the Group obtained
land use rights certificate but are not qualified as intangible fixed assets under prevailing laws and
regulations on costs incurred in conjunction with securing the use of leased land. These costs are
recognised in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases
from 35 to 50 years.

Land compensation costs

Land compensation costs comprise prepaid land lease rentals, compensation, resettlement and other
costs incurred in conjunction with securing the use of leased land for its mining activities. These costs
are recognised in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the term of the
related leases.

Other mining costs
Other mining costs comprise:
* Exploration, evaluation and development expenditure (including development stripping); and

*  Production stripping (as described below in ‘Deferred stripping costs’).

Deferred stripping costs

In open pit mining operations, it is necessary to remove overburden and other waste materials to
access ore body. Stripping costs incurred in the development phase of a mine (development stripping
costs) are recorded as part of the cost of construction of the mine. All development stripping
expenditure incurred during construction phase are transferred to other mining costs.

The costs of removal of the waste material during a mine’s production phase (production stripping
costs) are deferred where they give rise to future benefits:

a) It is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the Group;
b) The component of the ore body for which access has been improved can be identified; and
¢) The costs incurred can be measured reliably.

Production stripping costs are allocated between inventory and long-term prepaid expenses in
accordance with the life of mine strip ratio of the identified components of the ore bodies.

The life of mine strip ratio represents the estimated total volume of waste, to the estimated total
quantity of economically recoverable ore, over the life of the mine of the identified components of
the ore bodies. These costs are recognised as long-term prepaid expenses where the current period
actual stripping ratio is higher than the average life of mine strip ratio.
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(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

The development and production stripping costs are amortised systematically based on the mineral
reserves and mineral resources expected to be converted to mineral reserves of the relevant
components. During the year, NPM, a subsidiary of the Group, has updated its estimate of mineral
reserves and resources which serves as basis for calculation and amortisation of development and
production stripping costs. The revision was based on the result of mining specialist technical
assessments on mineral reserve within Nui Phao project area and the portion of resources expected
to be converted into reserves as disclosed in Note 3(g)(ii). The effect on the amortisation charge for
the current year was to increase the amortisation charge by VNDO billion.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract
with a customer that the Group would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained. The
Group shall capitalize incremental costs of obtaining a contract if such costs meet the following
criteria:

= Only the incremental costs incurred as a result of obtaining a contract should be capitalized;
= The cost must be recoverable.

The recognised asset shall be amortised on a systematic basis matched with the transfer of the goods
or services to the customer to which the asset relates.

Other prepaid expenses

Other prepaid expenses include service fees which are initially stated at cost and amortised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the contracts for services fees.

Accounts payable

Accounts payable to suppliers and other payables are stated at their cost.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability.

Mining rights

In accordance with the Law on Minerals 2010, a subsidiary of the Company has an obligation to pay
the government fees for mining rights grant. Mining rights is calculated based on the remaining
exploitable reserves and the price to calculate the charge for granting mining rights which is defined
under the prices to calculate the resource royalty in accordance with the law on resource royalty at
the time of determining the charge for granting mining rights officially which is Decree 67.
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(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

The prices to calculate the resource royalty is the price applicable for the Company’s products which
is determined by the provincial People’s Committee. The conversion method is based on various
parameters of the conversion coefficient under guidelines of Decree 67.

Mine rehabilitation

The mining, extraction and processing activities of the Group normally give rise to obligations for
site closure or rehabilitation. Closure and rehabilitation works can include facility decommissioning
and dismantling; site and land rehabilitation. The extent of work requires and the associated costs are
dependent on the requirements of Ministry of Natural Resources and Environment (“MONRE") and
the Group’s environmental policies based on the Environment Impact Report,

Provisions for the cost of each closure and rehabilitation program are recognised at the time that
environmental disturbance occurs. When the extent of disturbance increases over the life of an
operation, the provision is increased accordingly. Costs included in the provision encompass all
closure and rehabilitation activity expected to occur progressively over the life of the operation
proportional to the degree of influence on the environment existing at the end of the accounting
period.

Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically over the life of the operation, rather than at the time
of closure, provision is made for the estimated outstanding continuous rehabilitation work at each
reporting dates and the cost is charged to the statement of income. Routine operating costs that may
impact the ultimate closure and rehabilitation activities, such as waste material handling conducted
as an integral part of a mining or production process, are not included in the provision. Costs arising
from unforeseen circumstances, such as the contamination caused by unplanned discharges, are
recognised as an expense and liability when the event gives rise to an obligation which is probable
and capable of reliable estimation.

The timing of the actual closure and rehabilitation expenditure is dependent on the life of the mine.
Closure and rehabilitation provisions are measured at the expected value of future cash flows,
discounted to their present value and determined according to the probability of alternative estimates
of cash flows occurring for each operation. Significant judgments and estimates are involved in
forming expectations of future activities and the amount and timing of the associated cash flows.
Those expectations are formed based on existing environmental and regulatory requirements which
give rise to a constructive obligation.

When provisions for closure and rehabilitation are initially recognised, the corresponding cost is
capitalised as an asset if the related obligations for closure and rehabilitation are unavoidable to the
construction of the asset. The capitalised cost of closure and rehabilitation activities is recognised in
other mining assets and depreciated accordingly. The value of the provision is progressively increased
over time as the effect of the discounting unwinds, creating an expense recognised in financial
expenses.

Closure and rehabilitation provisions will also be adjusted for changes in estimates. These
adjustments will be accounted for as a change in the corresponding capitalised cost, except where a
reduction in the provision is greater than the under-depreciated capitalised cost of the related assets,
in which the capitalised cost is reduced to nil and the remaining adjustment is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Changes to the capitalised cost result in an adjustment to future
depreciation. Adjustments to the estimated amount and timing of future closure and rehabilitation
cash flows are a normal occurrence in light of the significant judgements and estimates involved.
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Pension liabilities

Pensions are retirement benefits and are classified as either defined contribution plans or defined
benefit plans.

Under a defined contribution plan, the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate fund. The
amount of an employee’s future retirement benefit is only based on the contributions paid and the
income earned from the investment. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. The Group’s contributions are to be recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they were to be contributed.

Under a defined benefit plan, employees will receive a defined amount of pension benefit on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation. The provision to be recognised for a defined benefit plan is calculated as the present
value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the accounting period. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting estimated future cashflow using interest rates of high-quality
AA-corporation bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximation to the terms of the related pension liability. The Group
determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the year by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period
to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability during the period as a result of contributions. Net interest expense and other expenses related
to defined benefit plans are recognised in consolidated statement of income. The remeasurement of
defined benefit obligation involves estimation of future cashflow, employee turnover, mortality and
future increase in salaries.

Gain or loss arising from remeasurements of the net defined benefit obligation, which comprise
actuarial gains and losses and the relevant deferred tax are recognised in equity under the caption
“Other equity funds” in accordance with a ruling from the Ministry of Finance (“MOF").

Bonds issued

At initial recognition, bonds are measured at cost which comprises proceeds from issuance net of
issuance costs. Any discount, premium or issuance costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the bond.
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Equity

Ordinary shares

Ordinary share capital is classified as equity. The excess of proceeds contributed over the par value
of shares issued is recorded as share premium. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from share premium.

Preference shares

Mandatorily convertible preference shares are classified as equity. These are entitled to fixed
dividends and any discretionary dividends declared to ordinary shareholders and it participates
equally in the residual assets on dissolution. The excess of proceeds contributed over the par value
of shares issued is recorded as share premium. Incremental costs directly attributable to the preference
shares are recognised as a deduction from share premium.

Other capital

Equity movements resulting from acquisition or disposal to non-controlling interests and transactions
involving equity instruments were recorded in “Other capital” prior to the prospective application of
Circular 202 from 1 January 2015 (Note 3(a)(iii)).

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the statement of income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
to equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at
the end of the annual accounting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at end of the annual accounting period. Deferred tax is recognised
in the consolidated statement of income except to the extent relating to item recognised directly in
equity.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will

be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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Revenue

Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the consolidated statement of income when
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is
recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due or the
possible return of goods. Revenue on sales of goods is recognised at the net amount after deducting
sales discounts.

For sales of minerals, the sales price is usually determined on a provisional basis at the date of revenue
recognition and adjustments to the sales price subsequently occurs based on movements in quoted
market or contractual prices up to the date of final pricing. The period between provisional invoicing
and final pricing is typically between 30 and 60 days, but in some cases can be as long as 90 to 180
days. Revenue on provisionally priced sales is recognised based on the estimated fair value of the
total consideration receivable.

In cases where the terms of the executed contractual sales agreement allow for an adjustment to the
sales price based on a survey of the goods by the customer, assay results issued by a third party are
preferable, unless customer’s survey is within executed contractual tolerance, then sales recognition
is based on the most recently determined product specifications agreed by parties.

Revenue from tolling business

Tolling process is offered to the Group’s worldwide customers of the metal powder business, in which
customers deliver used material or metal scraps to the Group for recycling into finished products i.e.
metal powder. Revenue from tolling business is recognised in the consolidated statement of income
when the goods have been processed and accepted by the buyer. Revenue from tolling business is
measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in the contract,
including tolling fee and fair value of materials of which it obtained control. No revenue is recognised
if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due.

Financial income and financial expenses

Financial income

Financial income comprises interest income from deposits and loans and foreign exchange gains.
Interest income is recognised as it accrues in the statement of income.

Financial expenses

Financial expenses comprise interest expenses on borrowings, bonds, facility fees, financing costs,
transaction costs and foreign exchange losses.
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Leases

Leased assets

Leases in terms of which the Group, as lessee, assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Tangible fixed assets acquired by way of finance leases
are stated at an amount equal to the lower of fair value and the present value of the minimum lease
payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation on finance leased assets is computed on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and the estimated useful lives of the leased assets unless it is reasonably certain that the Group
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of finance leased assets
are consistent with the useful lives of tangible fixed assets as described in Note 3(g)(ii).

Assets held under other leases are classified as operating leases and are not recognised in the Group’s
balance sheet.

Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the statement of income
as an integral part of the total lease expense over the term of the leases.

Lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs comprise interest expenses on borrowings, facility fees, financing costs and
transaction costs. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred,
except where the borrowing costs relate to borrowings in respect of the construction of qualifying
assets, in which case the borrowing costs incurred during the year of construction are capitalised as
part of the cost of the fixed assets concerned.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted, if any, earnings per share (“EPS”) for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. To
determine the profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders, profit or loss for the year is
allocated to the ordinary shares and participating equity instruments. This allocation is made in
accordance with the rights of the other class of shares to participate in distributions if the entire profit
or loss were distributed.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effect of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.
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Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing related
products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments. The Group’s primary and secondary format for segment
reporting is based on business segments and geographical segments respectively.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or to exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control
or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities and include
close family members of any individual considered to be a related party. Related parties that are
individuals refer to key management personnel who have authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Company, including directors and officers of the
Company. Related companies refer to the shareholders and their ultimate parent companies and their
subsidiaries and associates.

Comparative information

Comparative information in these consolidated financial statements is presented as corresponding
figures. Under this method, comparative information for the prior year is included as an integral part
of the current period financial statements and are intended to be read only in relation to the amounts
and other disclosures relating to the current year. Accordingly, the comparative information included
in these consolidated financial statements is not intended to present the Group’s consolidated
financial position, results of operation or cash flows for the prior year.
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Segment reporting

Business segments

The Group comprises the following business segments:

Fluorspar
VND’000

1,347,940,363

Form B 09 — DN/HN

(Issued under Cireular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Tungsten
VND’000

11,912,310,136

Others Total
VND’000 VND’000

247,635,257  13,564,289,846

Copper
From 1/1/2021 to 31/12/2021 VYND’000
Segment revenue 56,404,090
Segment gross profit 24,352,149

884,982,004

1,285,882,254

75,188,100 2,270,404,507

Unallocated expenses
Financial income

Financial expenses

Share of profit in associates

Results from operating activities

Other income
Other expenses
Income tax benefit

Net profit after tax

W,
HH

(A ='o 5l

(1,083,653,073)
344,622,946

(1,435,452,204)
3,064,567

98,986,743

142,172,892
(84,643,721)
104,607,715

261,123,629
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

From 1/1/2020 to 31/12/2020
Segment revenue

Segment gross profit/(loss)

Unallocated expenses
Financial income
Financial expenses

Share of loss in associates

Results from operating activities

Other income
Other expenses
Income tax benefit

Net profit after tax

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Cireular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Copper Fluorspar Tungsten Others Total
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
749,991,344 1,505,652,969  4,985,152,820 50,383,525  7.291,180,658

(258,933,157) 946,641,059 (429,133,271) (80,615,979) 177,958,652

N\ £ s/

(508,373,134)
646,482,348

(1,652,967,999)

(29,488,203)

(1,366,388,336)

1,328,986,068
(58,808,571)
148,001,797

51,790,958
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Total liabilities

As at 1 January 2021

Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Total liabilities

—

Copper
VND’000

141,513,923

Copper
VND’000

153,242,533

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Fluorspar Tungsten Others Total
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000

717,362,819  7,947,576,784  1,694,692,887 10,501,146,413
28,850,050,769

39,351,197,182

25,010,017,858
Fluorspar Tungsten Others Total
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000

757,149,316  9,407,654,444 963,525,139  11,281,571,432
28,827,276,382

40,108,847,814

26,029,306,779




Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

From 1/1/2021 to 31/12/2021

Capital expenditure

Unallocated capital expenditure
Depreciation and amortisation
Unallocated depreciation and amortisation
Unallocated amortization of prepayment

From 1/1/2020 to 31/12/2020

Capital expenditure

Unallocated capital expenditure
Depreciation and amortisation
Unallocated depreciation and amortisation
Unallocated amortization of prepayment

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Copper Fluorspar Tungsten Others Total
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
- - 112,758,089 164,118,584 276,876,673
644,683,303
11,728,610 44,344,098 679,307,009 69,379,559 804,759,276
783,851,503
308,082,904
Copper Fluorspar Tungsten Others Total
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000

- - 95,552,600 83,095,789 178,648,389
1,295,588,865

13,783,364 68,957,589 468,824,448 87,699,306 639,264,707
917,974,537

231,291,861

2\
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Geographical segments

The Group comprises the following geographical segments:

Form B 09 —- DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/20]14/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Vietnam Belgium Germany Japan USA China Others Total
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND?000 VND’000 VND’000
From 1/1/2021 to 31/12/2021
External revenue 103,896,711 77,128,101  2,254,194,005 890,305,497 2,739,884,245 3,172,104,872  4,326,776,415  13,564,289,846
Segment assets 30,270,118,574 221,363,342 3,795,213,885 298,007,504 1,080,375.416 1.829,894,491 1,856,223970  39,351,197,182
Capital expenditure 846,238,772 B 69,172,058 - - 5,101,715 1,047,431 921,559,976
Vietnam Belgium Germany Japan USA Others Total
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
From 1/1/2020 to 31/12/2020
External revenue 100,310,278  2,168,030,828 721,401,110 592,321,521 614,301,694 3,094,815,227  7,291,180,658
Segment assets 31,553,724,237 102,805,243  5,706,084,571 215,265,268 318,909,291 2,212,059,204 40,108,847,814

Capital expenditure 1,474,237 254 -

1,474,237,254
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Cash in banks
Cash in transit
Cash equivalents

Investments

Held-to-maturity investments

Short-term deposits
Long-term deposits

Held-to-maturity investments

Investments in associates, joint ventures

Form B 09 - DN/HN

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

31/12/2021 1/12021
VND’000 VND’000
227,268 229,529
644,562,304 696,047,057
. 9,653,700
399,000,000 56,000,000
1,043,789,572 761,930,286
31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VND’000 VND’000
7,400,000 -
- 7,400,000
7,400,000 7,400,000

The investments in associates, joint-ventures as at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2021 represent
the investment in Jiangwu H.C. Starck Tungsten Products Co. Ltd. — a company incorporated in
China, an associate of HCS. The Group has 30% of interest and voting rights in this entity.

Opening balance

Increases from business combination
Shared profit/(loss) in associates
Currency translation differences

Closing balance

2021 2020
VND*000 VYND’000
195,227,868 =
- 213,921,246
3,064,567 (29,488,203)
(17,781,945) 10,794,825
180,510,490 195,227,868
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Accounts receivable from customers — short-term

Accounts receivable from customers detailed by significant customers

31/12/2021 1/1/2021
YND’000 VYND’000

Third parties
Tungsten customers 1,481,640,329 966,871,809
Fluorspar customers 217,890,096 102,016,555
Bismuth customers 173,757,817 23,036,447
Copper customers 112,652,650 74,769,087
Other customers 2,320,495 B

1,988,261,387 1,166,693,898

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2021, a part of short-term receivables was pledged with banks
as security for short term loans granted to subsidiaries (Note 20(a)).

Loan receivables

Loan receivables — short-term as at 1 January 2021 represent loan granted to Masan Group
Corporation (“MSN”) — ultimate parent company. The loan is unsecured, receivable in 12 months
after drawn down date and has the interest rate agreed in the agreements at the transaction dates. The

loan was fully settled in 2021.

Other short-term and long-term receivables

31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VND’000 VND’000
Short-term other receivables
Receivable for mining rights fee (a) 241,979,433 239,835,807
Receivable for insurance claim (b) 74,794,500 E
Environmental protection fee prepayment 43,000,000 -
Export tax prepayment 19,568,139 -
Export tax receivable 17,175,216

Interest income 902,662 19,197.889
Receivable from reduction of purchase price of HCS group - 26,476,816
Others 23,846,152 35,579,024
421,266,102 321,089,536
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
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31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VND’000 VND’000
Long-term other receivables
Land compensation receivable from Thai Nguyen
People's Committee (c) 1,230,754,171 1,234,392,503
Deposit paid to Environment Protection Fund (d) 69,638,018 61,310,120
Net defined benefit assets 43,599,772 -
Others 582,828 2,607,828

1,344,574,789 1,298,310,451

Receivable for mining rights fee (“MRF”) represents additional mining rights fee of the Nui Phao
Mining Company Ltd (“NPM”) — a subsidiary for the year 2018 and 2019 and relevant administrative
charges that NPM paid to the authorities based on temporary calculation by the General Department
of Geology and Minerals (“GDGM”) under the Official Letter No.3724/DCKS-KTDCKS dated 28
December 2018 (“the Official Letter 37247).

NPM does not agree with the amount and basis of the Official Letter 3724 as the management is of
the opinion that it is unreasonable and does not comply with current regulations, because:

®* The price used to calculate the charge for granting mining rights (or mining right fee) (“G-price”)
is based on the prices to calculate the resource royalty. In accordance with regulations of the
Government’s Decree No. 12/2015/ND-CP dated 12 February 2015 and guidance of the Ministry
of Finance’s Circular No. 152/2015/TT-BTC dated 2 October 2015 on Royalties, if enterprises
extracted natural resources undergo further processing instead of being sold, their price is
exclusive of processing cost provided that it must be within the taxable price bracket imposed by
the Provincial People’s Committee. NPM’s products are industrial products, for which the
taxable price for resource royalty is determined on the basis of the higher of selling price minus
(-) processing cost and the taxable price imposed by the Provincial People’s Committee. GDGM
did not use the taxable price applied for industrial products, instead they used the taxable price
applied for tungsten ore (0.1%< W03<0.3%). ;

NPM has made payment for MRF in accordance with Decision 500/QD-BTNMT (“Decision 500™)
issued by the Ministry of Natural Resources and Environment (“MONRE”) on 4 March 2015, which
used estimated taxable price for resource royalty for industrial products.

NPM has also sent letters to different levels of authorities to highlight the issues and seek for proper
resolutions of NPM’s MRF. In 2021, as instructed by the Prime Minister under letter 978/VPCP-
KTTH dated 8 February 2021 and letter 5987/VPCP-KTTH dated 28 August 2021, the case is under
review by MOF, MONRE, Thai Nguyen PPC and Thai Nguyen Department of Finance, subject to
report to the Prime Minster and National Assembly Committee on Economy. By reporting date,
MONRE and Thai Nguyen PPC are still working together to determine the taxable price applied for
NPM’s industrial products.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

On 23 August 2021, MONRE has issued Decision 1640/QD/BTNMT (“Decision 16407) to
determine the MRF of Nui Phao Mine. replacing the temporary MRF calculation in Decision 500
and Official Letter 3724 despite that the taxable price applied for NPM’s industrial products has not
yet been determined. In issuing this Decision 1640, MONRE continued to use the taxable price
applied for tungsten ore (0.1%< W03<0.3%) instead of the taxable price applied for industrial
products, the issue of which had been highlighted by NPM before. According to Decree 67, Article
15 Point 3, in case the MRF is paid on temporary basis, if the prices for calculating resource royalties
announced by provincial People’s Committees are valid and compliant with regulations on prices of
minerals for determining mining, right fee, those prices shall be officially applied and replace prices
when making temporary payments. The management assessed that, because the taxable price applied
for NPM’s industrial products has not yet been determined by MONRE and Thai Nguven PPC. the
G price which serves as the basis for computation of MRF under Decision 1640 is not in accordance
with the prevailing laws and regulations.

As such, after the issuance of Decision 1640, NPM submitted several petition letters to the Prime
Minister, MONRE to request for delaying the implementation of Decision 1640 and re-determining
the MRF price.

Management believes that it had adequately provided for its liabilities for MRF from 2015 up to
present based on its interpretation of relevant legislation relating to mining rights and natural
resources tax, i.¢., using the price as determined in Decision 500. Accordingly, the Group accounted
the additional payvment in 2019 as other receivable and did not account for additional amount under
Decision 1640 as liabilities. Management expects that it will be able to claim back this receivable
when the taxable price applied for NPM’s industrial products is determined.

This amount represents estimated claim due from insurers for loss of profit arising from business
interruption of NPM from July to October 2021. By reporting date, the insurers have acknowledged
NPM’s insurance claim and have been working with third party loss adjuster to finalize the amount
of claim.

These represented receivables from State Treasury for the land compensation cost of the Nui Phao
Mining Project which was paid to the affected residents at Ha Thuong Commune, Dai Tu District,
Thai Nguyen Province. The amount can be netted off against annual land rental fee of future years.

NPM is required to deposit for obligation to mine closure and environment rehabilitation obligation
to Environment Protection. In accordance with Decision 1536/QD-BTMMT issued by MONRE
dated on 20 June 2019, the mine rehabilitation plan requires deposit amount to be increased to
VND123.460 million. On this date, the remaining deposit of VND87,692 million are approved for
annual instalment over 10 years from 2019. The future deposit instalment will be based on the annual
CPI fluctuation in accordance with Circular 38/2015/TT-BTNMT dated 30 June 2015.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Inventories
31/12/2021 1/1/2021
Cost Allowance Cost Allowance
VND’000 YND’000 VND’000 VYND’000

Goods 1n transit 372,098,029 - 71,956,654 -
Raw materials 754,788,015 (1,628,513) 956,039,022 -
Tools and supplies 730,776,119 (7,482,718) 686,047,326 (30,721,208)
Work in progress 945,904,485 (1,793,382) 669,042,621 (25,338,147)
Finished goods 3,000,567,190 (17,075,145)  2,508,689.741 (32,953,813)
Merchandise inventories 389,748 - 23,320,446 -
Goods on consignment 153,828,563 - 54,045,838 -

5,958,352,149 (27,979,758)  4,969,141,648  (89,013,168)

Included in inventories at 31 December 2021 was VND1,629 millions of raw materials, VND101,919
millions of tools, VND307,957 millions of work in progress and VND1,243,221 millions of finished
goods (1/1/2021: VND30,721 million of tools, VND291,208 million of work in progress and
VNDI,469,146 million of finished goods) carried at net realisable value.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

11.

Tangible fixed assets

Buildings Machinery Office Motor Other
and structures and equipment equipment vehicles mining assets Total

VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VYND’000
Cost
Opening balance 7,874,947 836 17,448,092,882 42.933,174 16,483,397 5,095,926,136  30.,478,383.425
Additions 5,232,853 83.406.632 - - - 88,639,485
Transfer from construction in progress (Note 14) 178,665,481 208,850,014 - 4,917,502 - 392,432,997
Disposals (1,990,310) (51,453,623) - - - (53.443,933)
Reclassification to investment properties (Note 13) (1,220,893,978) - - - - (1,220,893,978)
Currency translation differences (92,555.627) (269,225,291) = - - (361,780,918)
Closing balance 6,743,406,255 17.419.670,614 42,933,174 21,400,899 5,095,926,136  29,323,337.,078
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance 2,025,441,828 7.233,272,724 39,870,202 12,966,186 1,339,999 417 10,651,550,357
Charge for the year 302,764,310 837,659,257 1,099,065 2,439,026 151,304,447 1,295,266,105
Disposals (309,350) (30,428,605) & - - (30,737,955)
Reclassification to investment properties (Note 13) (315,295,303) - - - - (315,295,303)
Currency (ranslation differences (16,480,144) (177.,795,634) - - - (194,275,778)
Closing balance 1,996,121,341 7.862,707,742 40,969,267 15,405,212 1,491,303.864  11,406,507.426
Net book value
Opening balance 5,849,506,008 10,214.820,158 3,062,972 3517211 3,755,926,719  19,826,833,068
Closing balance 4,747,284 914 9,556,962,872 1,963,907 5,995,687 3,604,622,272 17,916,829,652

Included in the cost of tangible fixed assets of the Group were assets costing VND98, 143 million which were fully depreciated as at 31 December 2021 (1/1/2021:
VND73.,443 million), but which are still in active use.

At 31 December 2021, tangible fixed assets with carrying value of VND10,323 billion were pledged with banks as security for long-term bonds issued by a
subsidiary and the Company (1/1/2021: VND10,832 billion) (Note 20(b)).
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
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Intangible fixed assets
Development Customer Other intangible
Land Software  Mining rights cost (*) Brand name  Relationship  Technologies assets Total
VND’000 VND’000 VYND’000 YND'000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 YND’000 VYND’000
Cost
Opening balance 71,973,549 424 817,716 588,370,818 685,832,537 1,120,478,861 230,117,249 1,545,588.,076 26,485,360 4,693,664,166
Additions - 1,786,218 204,284 303 - - - - - 206,070,611
Transfer from construction
in progress (Note 14) 3717151 - - - - - - 3,717.151
Reclassification to investment
properties (Note 13) (37.535.619) - - 2 - - = (37.535.619)
Currency translation
differences (2,757,450) (29,039,864) - (63,707.482)  (104,082,094) (21,375,758) (143.570,797) (969,745) (365,503,190)
Closing balance 31,680,480 401,281,221 792,655,211 622,125,055 1,016,396,767 208,741,491 1,402,017,279 25,515,615 4,500,413,119
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance - 383,865,326 188,670,686 89,794,389 22,316,296 3,791,608 44,077,926 3,228,536 735,744,767
Charge for the year - 19,933,985 47,063,729 42,598,930 36,595,677 6,295,853 73,190,095 1,876,830 227,555,099
Currency translation
differences - (27,736,818) - (10,996,472) (4,821,220) (781,787) (9,088,377) (189,483) (53,614,157)
Closing balance - 376062493 235734415 121,396,847 54,090,753 9,305.674 108,179,644 4,915,883 909,685,709
Net book value
Opening balance 71,973,549 40,952,390 399,700,132 596,038,148  1,098,162,565 226,325,641 1,501.510,150 23,256,824 3,957,919,399
Closing balance 31,680,480 25218,728 556,920,796 500,728,208 962,306,014 199,435,817  1,293,837,635 20,599,732 3,590,727.410

Included in the cost of intangible fixed assets were assets costing VND18,005 million which were fully amortised as at 31 December 2021 (1/1/2021: VND15,291
million), but which are still in use.

At 31 December 2021, intangible fixed assets with carrying value of VND571 billion were pledged with banks as security for long-term bonds issued by a subsidiary
and the Company (1/1/2021: VND422 billion) (Note 20(b)).

Development cost includes completed projects related to troubleshooting used in the production process of the subsidiaries.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties held to earn rental

Cost
Opening balance
Reclassification from tangible fixed assets

(Note 11)

Reclassification from intangible fixed assets

(Note 12)
Currency translation difference

Closing balance

Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Reclassification from tangible fixed assets
(Note 11)

Currency translation difference

Closing balance

Net book value

Opening balance
Closing balance

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance) |

Cost of investment property is determined at fair value of assets at HCS's acquisition date.

Buildings
and structures Land Total
VYND’000 VYND’000 VND’000
1,220,893,078 - 1,220,893,978
- 37,535,619 37.535,619
(98,768,634) (3,486,710) (102,255,344)
1,122,125,344 34,048,909 1,156,174,253 ’
E
- = = {
65,789,575 - 05,789,575 |
315,295,303 = 315,295,303
(25,457,933) = (25,457,933)
355,626,945 . 355,626,945
%
?
TR
766,498,399 34,048,909 800,547,308 Z,
X
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
' Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Construction in progress

2021 2020
VYND’000 VND’000

Opening balance 1,467,480,229 1,694,487,259
Additions during the year 771,654,960 554,779,318
Increases from business combination - 112,549,289
Transfer to tangible fixed assets (Note 11) (392,432,997) (849,022,981)
Transfer to intangible fixed assets (Note 12) (3,717.151) (5,097,779)
Transfer to long-term prepaid expenses (Note 15) (560,333,761) (8,934,805)
Transfer to short-term prepaid expenses (37,931,144)

Reclassification to other long-term receivables (120,700,853) -
Currency translation differences (4,466,239) 6,651,072
Closing balance 1,157,484,188 1,467,480,229

During the year, borrowing costs capitalised into construction in progress amounted to VND29 billion
(2020: VND34 billion).

As at the reporting date, construction in progress of NPM, which mainly represented land
compensation, mine and plant development cost and other capitalised costs pertaining to tailing dams,

have been pledged with banks as security for long-term bonds issued by a subsidiary(Note 20(b)).

Major constructions in progress were as follows:

31/12/2021 1/1/2021

VND’000 VYND'000
Land compensation 337,970,014 774,195,509
Site clearance, relocation infrastructure and others 194,478,207 209,074,215
Plant, machinery and equipment 477,823,887 151,254,220
Tailing dams - 25,288
Other assets 147,212,080 332,930,997

1,157,484,188

1,467,480,229
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Long-term prepaid expenses

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Cireular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Prepaid land cost Incremental costs
and land Other mining of obtaining
compensation costs costs contract (*) Others Total

VND’000 VYND’000 VYND*000 VYND’000 VND’000
Opening balance 948,324,935 1,581,256.191 181,973,835 194,339,177 2.,905,894,138
Additions - 205,410,232 - 45,836,483 251,246,715
Transfer from construction in progress (Note 14) 433,138,222 106,227,414 - 20,968,125 560,333,761
Transfer from long-term receivables 77,591,432 = - - 77,591,432
Amortisation for the year (79,827,650) (131,046,398) (24,941,561) (72,267,295) (308.,082,904)
Closing balance 1,379,226,939 1,761,847.439 157,032,274 188,876,490 3,486,983,142

In September 2020, a subsidiary incurred costs to terminate its long-term offtake agreement with an existing customer in order to obtain a more favourable contract
with another. This cost is incremental costs of obtaining contract, thus is capitalised and amortised on a systematic basis consistent with the transfer of the goods

under new contract with another customer.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

(continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Advance from customers — short-term

31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VND’000 VYND’000
Third parties
Advance from sales of Fluorspar product - 645,340,981
Advance from sales of Bismuth product 10,884,532 103,650,397
Others 23,824,819 206,743,844
34,709,351 055,735,222

Advance from sales of Fluorspar and Bismuth shall be discharged through monthly instalments through

subsequent deliveries,
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17.

Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Taxes payable to State Treasury

Tax payables to Vietnamese State Treasury
Value added tax

Import-export tax

Corporate income tax

Environment protection tax

Personal income tax

Natural resource tax

Other taxes

Tax payables to foreign tax authorities
Corporate income tax
Other taxes

Form B 09 — DN/HN

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Currency
translation
1/1/2021 Incurred Paid/Offset Other movements differences 31/12/2021
YND’000 VND’000 YND?000 YND’000 VND*000 VND’000
~ 456,402,747 (456,402,747) - - =
- 201,218,547 (201,218,547) - & ]
454 802 21,689,161 (21,045,626) - - 1,098,337
- 63,532.212 (63,532,212) - - -
8,781,303 99.662.969 (99,278,164) - - 9,166,108
- 282,373,179 (282,373,179) - = -
3,863,318 17,017,626 (16,133,073) s - 4,747,871
13,099,423 1,141,896,441  (1,139,983,548) = - 15,012,316
101,345,073 38,017.922 (102,233,347) 45,401,147 (103.,976) 82,426,819
48,232 285 346,012,147 (279,533,109) (45.,401,147) 209,243 69,519,419
149,577,358 384,030,069 (381,766,456) 2 105,267 151,946,238
162,676,781 1,525,926,510 (1,521,750,004) - 105,267 166,958,554

P
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

18. Accrued expenses
31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VND’000 VYND’000
Operating costs 437,977,940 563,082,117
Accrued interest payable 214,245,456 228,436,211
Accrual for other financing costs 1,791,962 14,691,057
Share issuance fee - 42.624.809
Consultant fee 474,240 42,620,276
Natural resource taxes and fees 159,686,751 25,766,750
Bonus 180,705,685 15,469,188
Accrual for construction work 3,364,036 10,576,562
Others 2,298,368 1,380,829
1,000,544,438 944,647,799
19. Other short-term payables
Other payables included the following amounts:
31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VND’000 VYND’000
Short-term:
Amounts due to Masan Group Corporation
(“MSN”’) - the ultimate parent company
Financial expenses — short-term (a) 9,781,016 244,123,839
Amounts due to Masan Horizon Company Limited
(“MH”) — the immediate parent company
Non-trade — short-term (b) 2,511,785 2,511,785
Other payable to other parties
Payable for termination of off-take agreement with customer - 47,056,004
Usance LC payable at sight (UPAS LC) — short-term (c) 316,882,305 -
Other payables — short-term 13,180,357 12,991,835
342,355,463 306,683,463
(a) Under agreement with MSN — the ultimate parent company, these amounts were unsecured, interest-
free.
(b) Amounts due to related parties were unsecured, interest-free and repayable based on agreement

(c)

between the parties.

Amounts due to local banks that issued UPAS LC to a subsidiary of Group (Note 36). The outstanding
balances bear fixed rates over the deferred payment period of 6 months and are secured by 60 million
shares of the Company held by the immediate parent company (Note 20(a)).
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(fssued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Borrowings and bonds

Short-term borrowings and bonds

1/1/2021 Movement during the year 31/12/2021
Carrying amount Unrealised Carrying amount
and amount within foreign exchange and amount within
repayment capacity Additions Payments differences repayment capacity
VND’000 VND’000 VND?000 VND’000 VND’000
Short-term borrowings 3,164,644,018 5,608,097.474 (4,966,849,015) (4,262,090) 3,801,630,387
Current portion of long-term bonds
(Note 20(b)) 098,222,222 1,000,240,564 (1,000,000,000) B 998,462,786
4,162,866,240 6,608,338,038 (5.966.849.015) (4,262,090) 4,800,093,173
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Terms and conditions of short-term borrowings at respective reporting dates were as follows:

31/12/2021 1/1/2021

Currency VYND’000 YND’000
Secured bank loan (i) ushD 349,968,164 1,135,396.849
Secured bank loan (i) VND 908,780,000 -
Secured bank loan (ii) USD 99,247,616 -
Secured bank loan (iii) VND 966,211,032 895,817,351
Secured bank loan (iv) USD 462,795,428 333,766,713
Secured bank loan (1v) VND 974,000 286,954,000
Secured bank loan VND - 190,352,000
Unsecured bank loan (v) VND 35,000,000 100,589,728
Unsecured bank loan (v) ushD 291,496,322 96,054,387
Secured bank loan (vi) UusSD 55,056,000 125,712,990
Secured bank loan (vii) VND 107.331,633 -
Secured bank loan (vii) Uusb 334,198,913 -
Secured bank loan (viii) VND 8,895,279 -
Loan from related party (ix) VND 181,676,000 -

(1)

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

3,801,630,387  3,164,644,018

The USD and VND denominated loans from a related party bore interest ranging from 3.34%
to 4.07% per annum for USD loan and 4.1% per annum plus a margin based on some foreign
exchange rates agreed by a subsidiary and the bank for VND loan, respectively (1/1/2021:
3.45% to 4.93%).

The USD denominated loan from a related party bore interest 3.92% per annum.

The above loans as a(i) and a(ii) are secured by part of short-term receivables of a subsidiary
and 79 million shares of the Company held by the immediate parent company.

The loan from a local bank is secured by inventories, a part of short-term receivables and
assets of a subsidiary with the total value equal to 2 times of the credit limit and guaranteed
by MSN. Specific loans in VND bore interest ranging from 6.2% to 7.3% per annum
(1/1/2021: 7.0% to 7.5%).

Specific loans in USD and VND by a subsidiary bore interest ranging from 4.0% to 5.3% and
from 7.7% to 8.7% per annum, respectively (1/1/2021: 5.1% to 6.1% and 7.7% to 9.3%). The
loan is secured by 85 million shares of the Company held by the immediate parent company.

(v)  The loan from two branches of a foreign bank in Vietnam by a subsidiary, are unsecured.
Specific drawdown in USD and VND bore interest ranging from 3.05% to 3.5% and from
4.7% to 5.4% per annum, respectively (1/1/2021: 3.08% to 4.57% and 4.7% to 6.8%).

(vi)  The USD denominated loan from a foreign bank in Vietnam by a subsidiary is secured by part

of short-term receivables and all operating bank accounts of a subsidiary opened at the bank.
Specific loans drawn down in USD bore interest ranging from 3.0% to 3.7% per annum
(1/1/2021: 2.22% to 4.3%).
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

(vii)  Specific loans in USD and VND by a subsidiary bore interest ranging from 4.6% to 5.1% per
annum and 7.2% per annum, respectively.

(viii) Specific loan VND by a subsidiary bore interest ranging from 7.2% to 7.25% per annum.

The above loans as a(vii) and a(viii) and a part of the outstanding UPAS LC (Note 19) are
secured by 60 million shares of the Company held by the immediate parent company.

(ix)  The loans from MSN — the ultimate parent company are unsecured, receivable in 12 months
after drawdown dates with interest rates agreed in the agreements at the transaction dates.

Long-term bonds

31/12/2021 1/1/2021

VYND’000 VND’000
Long-term bonds issued 10,236,665,680 10,218,664,742
Repayable within twelve months (Note 20(a)) (998,462,786) (998,222,222)
Repayable after twelve months 0,238,202.894 9,220,442,520

Terms and conditions of outstanding long-term bonds denominated in VND were as follows:

Year of 31/12/2021 1/1/2021

maturity VND’000 VYND’000
Secured bond issued (a) 2023 498,669,652 497.829.434
Secured bond issued 2021 - 098,222,222
Secured bond issued (b) 2023 1,495,600,000 1,493,200,000
Secured bond issued (c) 2024 498,030,696 497,186,709
Secured bond issued (d) 2022 299,718,671 208,874,684
Secured bond issued (e) 2022 199,765,559 199,202,900
Secured bond issued () 2024 498,133,333 497,333,333
Secured bond issued (g 2022 99,795,510 99,488,774
Secured bond issued (h) 2022 189,611,468 189,028,670
Secured bond issued (i) 2022 209,571,578 209,000,349
Secured bond issued () 2023 992,000,000 1,577,600,000
Secured bond issued (k) 2023 1,587,200,000 986,000,000
Secured bond issued 1)) 2023 693,700,000 689,638,629
Secured bond issued (m) 2023 996,000,000 993,333,333
Secured bond issued (n) 2023 095.541,561 992,725,705
Secured bond issued (0) 2024 983,327,652 -
10,236,665,680 10,218,664,742
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)
(a)  The VND denominated bonds issued by a subsidiary with a five-year term bore interest rate

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(2)

(h)

of 10% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.25%. The bond proceeds were
used by a subsidiary and secured by 51.6 million shares of the Company held by the immediate
parent company.

The VND denominated bonds issued by the Company with a five-year term bore interest rate
of 10% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.25%. The bond was secured by a
part of certain long-term assets of a subsidiary (Note 11, Note 12 and Note 14).

The VND denominated bonds issued by a subsidiary with a five-year term bore interest rate
of 10.2% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.3%. The bond was secured by 55.6
million shares of the Company held by the immediate parent company.

The VND denominated bonds issued by a subsidiary with a three-year term bore interest rate
of 10% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.1%. The bond was secured by 31.2
million of the Company held by the immediate parent company.

The VND denominated bonds issued by a subsidiary with a three-year term bore interest rate
of 10% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.1%. The bond was secured by 20.8
million shares of the Company held by the immediate parent company.

The VND denominated bonds issued by the Company with a five-year term bore interest rate
of 10.2% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.3%. The bond was secured by a
part of certain long-term assets of a subsidiary (Note 11, Note 12 and Note 14).

The VND denominated bonds issued by a subsidiary with a three-year term bore interest rate
of 10% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.1%. The bond was secured by 10.7
million shares of the Company held by the immediate parent company.

The VND denominated bonds issued by a subsidiary with a three-year term bore interest rate
of 10% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.1%. The bond was secured by a
part of certain long-term assets of a subsidiary (Note 11, Note 12 and Note 14).
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

(i) The VND denominated bonds issued by a subsidiary with a three-year term bore interest rate
of 10% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.1%. The bond was secured by 22.3
million shares of the Company held by the immediate parent company.

() The VND denominated bonds issued by a subsidiary with a three-year term bear interest rate
of 10% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.2%. The bond was guaranteed by
MSN - the ultimate parent company and secured by a part of certain long-term assets of a
subsidiary (Note 11, Note 12 and Note 14).

(k)  The VND denominated bonds issued by a subsidiary with a three-year term bear interest rate
of 10% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.2%. The bond was guaranteed by
MSN and secured by a part of certain long-term assets of a subsidiary (Note 11, Note 12 and
Note 14).

(D The VND denominated bonds issued by a subsidiary with a three-year term bore interest rate
of 10% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.2%. The bond was guaranteed by
MSN and secured by a part of certain long-term assets of a subsidiary (Note 11, Note 12 and
Note 14).

(m) The VND denominated bonds issued by a subsidiary with a three-year term bore interest rate
of 10% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.1%. The bond was secured by
107.9 million shares of the Company held by the immediate parent company.

(n)  The VND denominated bonds issued by a subsidiary with a three-year term bore interest rate
of 10% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.1%. The bond was secured by
107.9 million shares of the Company held by the immediate parent company.

(o)  The VND denominated bonds issued by the Company with a three-year term bore interest rate
of 9.2% per annum for the first twelve months. After the first twelve months, the applicable
interest rate per annum will be adjusted every six months and calculated as the average twelve-
month saving deposit rate of related reference banks plus 3.625%.The bond was secured by a
part of certain long-term assets of a subsidiary (Note 11, Note 12 and Note 14).

These secured bonds in the consolidated financial statements were reported net of bond arrangement
fees.

The representatives of the bondholders of bonds in all disclosed notes above are Techcom Securities
JSC — the ultimate parent company’s associate.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Deferred tax assets, liabilities and unrecognised deferred tax assets

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Tax rate 31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VYND’000 VYND’000

Deferred tax assets:
Remeasurement of provision for pension
liabilities 30% 653,730,131 941,694,831
Tax losses carry-forwards 30% 181,477,931 187,383,399
Unrealized gain on intra-group transactions 10% 2,537,590 -
Pre-existing relationship - Benefit from
contract with NPM 30% 16,036,546 20,045,683
Accruals, provisions and others (*) 30% 33,723,569 58,298,400
Net-off 30% (590,701,894)  (513,938,646)

Total deferred tax assets 296,803,873 693,483,676
Deferred tax liabilities:

Mineral reserves and mineral resources 15% 529,951,719 552,077,034
Unrealized loss on intra-group transactions 10% - 15% 11,438,679 45,054,074
Newly identified intangible assets from

business combination 25% - 30% 878.862,616 1,010,890,563
Newly identified tangible assets from business

combination (*) 15% - 30% 635,445,223 713,331,143
Others (#) 30% 103,244,010 (12,320,767)
Net-off 30% (615,032,281) (466,198,512)

Total deferred tax labilities

1,543,909,966

1,842,833,535

Deferred tax assets and liabilities includes items mainly arose from HCS and its subsidiaries. These
items were presented on a net basis because the subsidiaries have a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authorities on the same taxable entities.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issuee under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Movement in temporary differences during the year

Recognised
in consolidated Recognised
1/1/2021 statement of income in equity 31/12/2021
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
Mineral reserves and mineral resources (552,077,034) 22,125,315 - (529,951,719)
Unrealized (loss)/profit on intra-group transactions (45,054,074) 36,152,985 - (8,901,089)
Pre-existing relationship asset 20,045,683 (4,009,137) - 16,036,546
Remeasurement of provision for pension liabilities (**) 041,694,831 106,038,210 (394,002,910) 653,730,131
Tax losses carry-forwards 187,383,399 3,691,092 (9,596.,560) 181,477,931
Identified intangible assets from business combination (1,010,890,563) 44,318,402 87,709,545 (878,862,616)
Identified tangible assets from business combination (713,331,143) 27,204,558 50,681,362 (635,445,223)
Accrual, provisions and others 22,879,042 (71,206,627) 2137331 (45,190,054)

(1,149,349 859) 164,314,798 (262,071,032)  (1,247,106,093)

Deferred tax recognised in equity also included the relevant deferred tax of the remeasurement of the net defined benefit obligation - provision for pensions. As
explained in Note 3(1), these amounts are recognised in equity under the caption “Other equity funds” in accordance with a ruling from the Ministry of Finance.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Provisions - long-term

Movements of long-term provisions during the year were as follows:

Mine Mining Pensions and
rehabilitation rights others Total
VYND’000 VND’000 VND’000 YND’000

Opening balance 103,800,498 390,248,573 6,963,327,331 7,457,376,402
Provision made during the year 4,899,383 216,015,571 17,683,356 238,598,310
Remeasurement of provision for

pensions (*) - - (483,845,303) (483,845,303)
Provision used during the year - (73,145,650) (201,538.,021) (274.683,671)
Currency translation differences - - (586,720.592) (586,720,592)
Closing balance 108,699,881 533,118,494 5.708,906,771 6,350,725,146

As explained in Note 3(m)(iii), the remeasurement of the net defined benefit obligation - provision
for pensions and the relevant deferred tax are recognised in equity under the caption “Other equity
funds” in accordance with a ruling from the Ministry of Finance.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Changes in equity

Balance at 1 January 2020

Net profit for the year
Increases from business
combination

New shares issuance
Transaction fee for new shares
issuance

Remeasurement of provision
for pensions

Foreign exchange differences

Balance at 1 January 2021

Net profit for the year
Remeasurement of provision
for pensions

Foreign exchange differences

Balance at 31 December 2021

Form B 09 - DN/HN

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Equity
Foreign attributable to
exchange Other equity ~ Undistributed equity holders of Non-controlling
Share capital  Share premium  Other capital differences funds profits after tax  the Company interest Total equity
VND'000 VND*000 VIND’000 VYND’000 VND000 VND'000 VND'000 VYND’000 VND’000
9.892,398.780 145,709,384 (295,683,347) - - 2,727.397.449 12,469.822.266 - 12,469,822.266
- - 39,195,963 39,195,963 12,594,995 51,790,958
- - - - - - 49,291,905 49,291,905
1,099,155.420 995,175.317 - - - 2,094,330,737 - 2,094,330.737
- (42.624,809) - - - - (42.,624.809) (42,624,809)
- = = (358,967,342) = (358.967,342) = (358,967.342)
= - - (189,058.584) - - (189,058,584) 4,955,904 (184,102.680)
10,991,554,200  1,098,259,892  (295.683.347) (189.058,584)  (358,967,342) 2.766,593.412  14.012.698.231 66,842 804 14.079,541.035
- - - - - 195,611,320 195.611,320 65,512,309 261,123,629
- - - - 188.714.955 188,714,955 - 188,714,955
- (176.770.526) - (176,770,526) (11,429.769) (188,200,295)
10,991,554,200 1.098,259,892 (295,683,347) (365.829.110) (170,252.387) 2,962,204,732 14,220,253,980 120,925,344 14.341.179,324
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for year ended 31 December 2021

(continued)
Form B 09a - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)
Share capital
The Company’s authorised and issued share capital comprised:
31/12/2021 1/1/2021
Number of Number of
shares VYND’000 shares VND*000
Authorised share capital 1,099,155,420 10,991,554,200 1,099,155,420 10,991,554,200
Issued share capital
Ordinary shares 1,099,155,420 10,991,554,200 1,099,155,420 10,991,554,200

Shares in circulation

Ordinary shares 1,099,155,420 10,991,554,200 1,099,155,420 10,991,554,200

Share premium - 1,098,259,892 - 1,098,259,892

All ordinary shares have a par value of VND10,000. Each share is entitled to one vote at meetings of
the Company. Shareholders are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time. All
ordinary shares are ranked equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. In respect of shares
bought back by the Company, all rights are suspended until those shares are reissued.

Share premium represents the excess of the proceeds on issuance of shares over the par value.

Included in the shares in circulation are 109,915,542 of ordinary shares issued to Mitsubishi Material
Corporation (the Investor) on 26 October 2020 for the consideration of VND2,094,330,737,268. In
relation to this issuance, the Company also granted a put option to the Investor. In the event that (i)
the Company and the Investor (or their affiliate) fail to establish a joint operation of midstream
tungsten business after closing date of the above share issuance or (ii) if there is a change in control
in the Company, the Investor will have an irrevocable right to request the Company or its nominee to
purchase all shares issued above at the amount equal to consideration of VND2,094,330,737,268 less
the aggregate of any proceeds received by the Investor from disposing the Company’s shares,
dividends and distributions paid by the Company subject to customary adjustments from dilutive
events. The deadline to take actions necessary to effect the completion of the put option is 18 months
from the date that the Company receives put option exercise notice from the Investor. The exercise
of the put option will be subject to approval of Board of Directors, shareholders and Vietnamese
regulators.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for year ended 31 December 2021
(continued)
Form B 09a - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Off balance sheet items

Lease

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were:

31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VND’000 YND’000
Within one year 12,080,324 16,497,931
Within two to five years 14,967,391 16,599,443
27.047.715 33,097,374
Foreign currencies
31/12/2021 1/1/2021
Original YND’000 Original VND’000
currency equivalent currency equivalent
USD 14,045.416.12 318,128,675 12,139,880.37 279,035,150
EUR 8,071,721.05 205,570,592 10,166,623.19 285,438,113
JPY 341,132,473.00 66,309,330 149,538,241.00 33,004,585
CNY 8,405,767.48 28,495,552 10,586,982.83 36,747,417
CAD 451,969.71 7,970,486 763,488.94 13,650,419
Bad debts written off
31/12/2021 1/1/2021
VYND’000 VND’000
Bad debts written off 30,294,111 21,507,965
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27.

Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for year ended 31 December 2021

(continued)

Capital expenditure commitments

Form B 09a - DN/HN

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

As at 31 December 2021 the Group had the following outstanding capital commitments approved but

not provided for in the balance sheet:

31/12/2021 1/1/2021

VND’000 VND’000
Approved but not contracted 48,661,006 176,985,972
Approved and contracted 42,650,549 85,765,512
91,311,555 262,751,484

Final sales pricing adjustment

As disclosed in Note 3(q), the Group had the commitments under sales contract to adjust the sales
price of its product sold based on future quoted market price at the London Metal Bulletin (“LMB”™)
at the agreed final pricing date. The revenue on provisionally priced sales is initially recognised based
on the estimated fair value of the total consideration receivable. Such revenue is subject to adjustment
at the final pricing date subsequent to end of the accounting period.

There is no revenue recognised on a provisional basis as at 31 December 2021 (1/1/2021: Nil).

Revenue from sales of goods and provision of services

Total revenue represents the gross value of goods sold and services rendered exclusive of value added
tax and export tax.

Financial income

2021 2020
VND'000 VND’000
Call option fee - 406,473,000
Foreign exchange gains 333,321,053 187,623,389
Interest income from deposit and loans 11,226,946 52,304,346
Others 74,947 81,613
344,622,946 646,482,348
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28.

29.

30.

Financial expenses

Interest expense

2021
VND’000

1,076,266,273

2020
VND’000

1,199,925,907

Borrowing fees 69,055,054 78,922 551
Foreign exchange losses 172,839,989 230,948,527
Others 117,290,888 143,171,014
1,435,452,204 1,652,967,999
Selling expenses
2021 2020

VND’000 VND’000
Freight charges 230,927,869 129,429,031
Outside services 81,969,934 33,076,145
Depreciation expenses 7,503,098 3,696,804
Salary expenses 76,581,084 3,517,901
Others 48,640,408 56,504,185

445,622,393 226,224,066
General and administration expenses

2021 2020

VND’000 VND’000
Office supplies 55,680,642 34,849,671
Outside services 45,511,156 32.536,700
Depreciation expenses 75,048,753 33,890,379
Salary expenses 330,781,719 123,630,449
Tax and legal fees 8,289,893 5,267,848
Others 122,718,517 51,974,021

638.030,680 282,149,068
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32.

Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for year ended 31 December 2021

(continued)

Other income

Gain from bargain purchase from business combination
Insurance claims

Gain on scrap sales

Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Other

Other expenses

Insurance claims expenses

Loss from disposal of fixed assets
Tax penalties

Others

Form B 09a - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

2021 2020
VND’000 VND’000
- 1,298,081,205
87,316,300 -
10,795,294 1,462,130
121,641 12.478.204
43,939,657 16,964,529
142,172,892  1,328,986,068
2021 2020
VND’000 VND’000
9,852,770 - -
1,201,810 8,776,981 [
s 9,370,848 _:
73,589,141 40,660,742 1
84,643,721 58,808,571
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for year ended 31 December 2021

(continued)

Form B 09a - DN/HN
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Income tax

Recognised in the consolidated statement of income

Current tax expense
Current year
Over provision for prior years

Deferred tax benefit
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Write down of deferred tax assets

Income tax benefit

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Accounting profit/(loss) before tax

Tax at the Company tax rate
Non-deductible expenses

Tax incentives

Effect of different tax rates in subsidiaries
Tax exempt income

Tax losses utilised

Over provision for prior years

Write down of deferred tax assets

Change in unrecognised deferred tax assets arise from

temporary differences

2021 2020
VND’000 VND’000
59,865,637 24,879,988
(158,554) (4,225,330)
59,707,083 20,654,658
(200,060,611) (168,656,455)
35,745,813 -
(164,314,798) (168,656,455)
(104,607,715) (148,001,797)
2021 2020
VND’000 VND’000
156,515,914 (96,210,839)
31,303,183 (19,242,167)
4,984,153 7,151,662
(27,844,449) -
(215,184,381) 7,635,516
- (259,616,241)
(24,856,632) =
(158,554) (4,225,330)
35,745,813 -
91,403,152 120,294,763

(104,607,715)

(148,001,797)
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Applicable tax rates

The Company has an obligation to pay the government corporate income tax at the rate of 20% of
taxable profits. The Company's subsidiaries have obligation to pay the government income tax in
accordance with the prevailing regulations. The Company’s subsidiaries enjoy various tax incentives
which provide subsidiaries with further tax exemption and reductions as follow:

* MTC - a subsidiary enjoys income tax incentives applicable for high-tech investment project under
Vietnamese current tax regulations.

* NPM - a subsidiary enjoys income tax incentives applicable for mining and processing activities
for mineral products other than gold in areas with extremely difficult socio-economic conditions
under Vietnamese current tax regulations.

All of the above tax exemption and reduction are not applicable to other income which is taxed at the
standard income tax rate applicable to enterprises before any incentives of 20%.

HCS and its subsidiaries are based mainly in Germany, Canada, China.

* Companies based in Germany with legal form of corporation are subject to corporation tax of 15%
and are then subject to a surcharge of 5.5% (solidarity surcharge). This results in a total tax rate of
15.825%. These companies are also subject to the Trade tax which is a combination of a uniform
tax rate of 3.5% (base rate) multiple with municipal tax rate depending on where the companies’
permanent establishment located. The corporate income tax rate are the sum of total rate and the
trade tax, which is approximately 30% on average;

* H.C. Starck Jiangwu Tungsten Specialities (Ganzhou), Co., Ltd is subject to corporate income tax
of 15% applicable to foreign investment production enterprise and established in Ganzhou, Jiangxi
Province of People’s Republic of China;

= H.C. Starck Canada Inc. is subject to corporate income tax rate applicable to Canadian enterprise
of approximately 25%.

Tax contingencies

The taxation laws and their application in some countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate were subject to interpretation and may change over time. The final tax position may be subject
to review and investigation by a number of authorities, who are enabled by law to impose severe
fines, penalties and interest charges. These facts may create tax risks for the Company and its
subsidiaries. Management believes that it had adequately provided for tax liabilities based on its
interpretation of tax and legislation, including on transfer pricing requirements and computation of
corporate income tax and deferred tax liabilities. However, the relevant authorities may have different
interpretations.

66

N

i}
| N
P

%

E



34.

(a)

(b)

(c)

35

(a)

Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for year ended 31 December 2021
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Form B 09a - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
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Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2021 was based on the
profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of VND195,611 million (2020: VND39,196 million) and
a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 1,099,155,420 shares (2020:
1,000,651,874 shares), calculated as follows:

Net profit attributable to shareholders

2021 2020
YND’000 VND’000
Net profit for the year 261,123,629 51,790,958
Non-controlling interest (65,512,309)  (12,594,995)
Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 195,611,320 39,195,963

Weighted average number of shares

2021 2020
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year 1,099,155,420 089,239,878
Effect of shares issued on 24 November 2020 - 11,411,996

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for

the year ended 31 December 1,099,155.420  1,000,651,874

Diluted earnings per share

The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Significant transactions with related parties

In addition to related party balances and transactions disclosed in other notes to these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following significant balances and transactions with related
parties during the year.

Related party balances

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has current and term deposit accounts at
Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“TCB”) at normal commercial terms.

As at 31 December 2021, associates of the ultimate parent company held VND464,322 million
(1/1/2021: VND161,807 million) of the issued bonds of the Group.
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Masan High-Tech Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

(continued)

Related party transactions

Related Party Nature of transactions

Ultimate parent company
Masan Group Borrowings received
Corporation ("MSN™) Borrowings repaid
Interest expense
Loan granted
Loan collected
Interest income from loan granted

Ultimate parent company’s associate
TCB and its Interest expense and borrowing fees
subsidiaries Borrowings received

Borrowings repaid

Bond proceeds received (i)

Bond repurchased

Purchase of trading securities

Sales of trading securities

Ultimate parent company’s subsidiary
Masan Consumer Purchase of goods
Corporation Purchase of services

Key management personnel
Salary, bonus and other benefits (ii)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

2021
VND’000

241,676,000
60,000,000
0,850,057

1,143.479.452
4,342,451

107.712.636
1,621,482,534
1,393.426,927
1,000,000,000
109,198,100
212,874,260
213,756,230

1,157,083
786,573

39,110,438

2020
VND’000

2,181,000,000
2,181,000,000
13,773,529
1,923,753,425
1,780,273,973
46,098,803

91,904,512
38,823,600
1,777,789,296
5,300,138,629
1,900,979,224

1,370,253
1,273,609

25,157,139

The bonds are listed and sold to a broader group of investors pursuant to arrangement agreements.

No board fees were paid to Board of Directors members for the year ended 31 December 2021 and

31 December 2020,
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Included in the remuneration to key management personnel, the actual board fees, salary and bonus
for each member of the Company’s Board of Directors and the Company's General Director during
the year were as follows:

2021 2020
Name Position VND’000 VND’000
Board of Directors
Mr. Danny Le Chairman - -
Mr., Nguyen Thieu Nam First Vice Chairman - -
Mr. Craig Richard Bradshaw Member - -
Mr. Akira Osada Member - -
Ms. Nguyen Thu Hien Independent member - -
Mr. Nguyen Van Thang Member - -
General Director
Mr. Craig Richard Bradshaw General Director (*) 39,110,438 25,157,139

) Salary and bonus for the General Director of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020 are paid out by a subsidiary of the Company.

36. Non-cash financing activities

2021 2020
VND’000 VND’000
Payments to suppliers by banks on the Group’s behalf under
UPAS LC 801,207,252 -
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Contingent liabilities

As disclosed in Note 9(a), on 23 August 2021, MONRE has issued Decision 1640/QD/BTNMT
(“Decision 1640”) to determine the MRF of Nui Phao Mine, replacing temporary MRF calculation
in Decision 500 and Official Letter 3724. MONRE continued to use the taxable price applied for
tungsten ore (0.1%< W03<0.3%) instead of the taxable price applied for industrial products. The
official G-price according to Decision 1640 is VND1,831,085 per ton whereases the temporary G-
price according to Decision 500 is VND775,026 per ton. The additional MRF due to different G-
price during the period from 2015 to 2021 is VND394.5 billion.

After the issuance of Decision 1640, NPM — a subsidiary, submitted several petition letters to the
Prime Minister, MONRE to request for delaying the implementation of Decision 1640 and re-
determining the MRF price.

On 6 October 2021, NPM received Notification on payment of MRF issued by the Thai Nguyen Tax
Department (“TNTD”) to inform the MRF following Decision 1640. On 8 December 2021, TNTD
send an Official Letter No 4883/CTTNG-QLN requesting NPM to make payment of MRF of
VND125.8 billion equivalent to the shortage of MRF payment for the period from 2018 to 2021,
together with an interest on late payment of VND4.1 billion.

Management believes that it had adequately provided for its liabilities for MRF from 2015 up to
present based on its interpretation of relevant legislation relating to mining rights and natural
resources tax. The Group’s management has been, therefore, also sent letters to different level of
authorities to highlight the issues and seek for proper resolutions of NPM’s MRF.

In 2021, as instructed by the Prime Minister under letter 978/VPCP-KTTH dated 8 February 2021
and letter 5987/VPCP-KTTH dated 28 August 2021, the case is under reviewing and working by
MOF, MONRE, Thai Nguyen PPC and Thai Nguyen Department of Finance, subject to report to the
Prime Minster and National Assembly Committee on Economy. By reporting date, MONRE and Thai
Nguyen PPC are working together to calculate the taxable price applied for NPM’s industrial
products.

The management assessed that because the taxable price applied for NPM's industrial products has
not yet been determined by MONRE and Thai Nguyen PPC, the G price which serves as the basis
for computation of MRF under Decision 1640 is not in accordance with the prevailing laws and
regulations. It, therefore, believes that once the taxable price applied for NPM's industrial products
are available, the official MRF for Nui Phao mine from 2015 onwards will be re-determined,
replacing amount as stated in Decision 1640.

The ultimate outcome of the matter is presently not determined and may be subject to final taxable
price applied for NPM’s industrial products and its ability to request MONRE to recalculate the MRF
in Decision 1640. Accordingly, no provision for the additional MRF during the period from 2015 to
2021 as in Decision 1640 has been made in the consolidated financial statements.
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Comparative information

Comparative information as at 1 January 2021 was derived from the balances and amounts reported
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

11 March 2022

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Nguyen Thi Thanh Mai Stuart JAmes Welly
Chief Accountant iief Financial Officer
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